
 

 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 
 
 

                 LOCATION 2: 546 LUCILLE DRIVE, INCLINE VILLAGE, NV, 89451 
 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 
 
James Bissell, President - Stefaniya Becking, Vice President - John Boyle, Treasurer - Ken Brown, Secretary Gunnar 
Thordarson, Member 
                                                                     BOARD MEETING 
 
Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 
 
BOARD BUSINESS 

 
1. Public Hearing – Proposed Delinquent Sewer Service Fees To Be Added to 2019-20 Alpine County Tax    

                             Rolls - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
2. The Board will consider adoption of the May 20, 2019 Board Meeting minutes 
 
3. Review Draft Revised District By-Laws – Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
4. Bear Valley Water District Wastewater Treatment Pond Improvement Project – Update 

 
5. FY 19 - 20 Final Budget Proposal – Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
6. Manager’s Report  –  General Manager 

 
7. Financial Report  –  General Manager 
 

7.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
7.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item  
7.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
 

8. Board Member Reports 
 

 
Materials related to any item on this Agenda are available for public inspection in the District Office at 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, 
CA 95223 during normal business hours.  Information on materials in the agenda is also available on the Bear Valley Water District 
website at http://www.bvwd.ca.gov, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.  Any material provided to the 
legislative body at the meeting by agency staff or a member of the legislative body will be available at the public meeting, documents 
provided by others will be available right after the meeting. 
 
This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42USC, #12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act, CA Government Code # 54954.2. 
 
Any persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Judi 
Silber at 209-753-2112, during regular business hours, at least 72 hours prior to the meetings.  







 
LOCATION 2: 546 LUCILLE DRIVE, INCLINE VILLAGE, NV, 89451 

 
DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 

 

President James Bissell called the meeting to order at 8:05 A.M.  Directors present were John Boyle, Treasurer, Ken 
Brown, Secretary, and Gunnar Thordarson, Director, via teleconference.  Staff present were Jeff Gouveia, General 
Manager and Judi Silber, Office Manager.  No public present. 

 
 

Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 
 

PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 

 
BOARD BUSINESS 

 

1. The Board will consider adoption of the February 19, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 
Motion/Boyle Second/Brown to accept the Minutes of the February 19, 2019 meeting as presented. 

 AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
2. Review and Directions on Amending District By-Laws - Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
Legal Counsel Dan Schroeder attended the meeting via teleconference and addressed in detail each 
section of the 2010 bylaws.  Counsel Schroeder advised the Board of changes that he recommended.   
 
ACTION:  The Board authorized staff to revise and amend the bylaws and present for consideration 
at the next Board meeting. 
 

 
3. Procurement Policy – Resolution No. 497 - Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
Andy Pinasco of Neumiller & Beardsley joined the meeting via teleconference to address the draft 
procurement policy.  Since it was ultimately determined that the District was formed as a California 
Water District and not a Municipal Water District as initially believed,  Pinasco reiterated that the District 
is not subject to any competitive bid statutes.  Pinasco clarified that The District, though it may choose 
to, is not bound to accept the lowest bid if or when bidding a project.  Counsel stated that it is up to 
the District to establish its own rules for how to handle competitive bidding.  The more specific the 
requirements for public bids the better off the District will be.  Pinasco further advised the District to have 
language in the procurement policy stipulating that the District doesn’t have to accept the lowest bid.  
Counsel stated that the District should disclose in the preamble of the procurement policy that under 
the California Water District statute the District is not subject to the bidding process.  The Board discussed 
a threshold for letting of projects to competitive bid and Director Thordarson suggested a threshold of 
$50K.  
 
ACTION:  The Board authorized Staff to revise the draft procurement policy and present for consideration 
at the next Board meeting. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
4. Bear Valley Water District Wastewater Pond Improvement Project – Award Contract 

Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
Weber, Ghio and Associates (WGA) conducted the bid opening on May 15, 2019 for the WWTP 
Improvement Project receiving only one bid.  The bid received totaled $166,705. The bid summary was  
reviewed and discussed by the Board.  Based on Engineering’s original estimate of $90,000 for this 
public works portion of the project, the Board authorized an ad hoc committee to meet with the sole 
bidder to discuss the bid in greater detail and seek a reduction of costs where possible.  The Board also 
discussed alternatives including trying to find another contractor or deferring the project another year.  
It was proposed to include a contingency allowance in the budget and to authorize the GM to spend 
up to $225K on this project following approval by the ad hoc committee.  After the meeting with the 
contractor the Board authorized a conference call with among the Ad Hoc Committee to determine 
final action. 
 
Motion/Boyle Second/Brown to form an Ad Hoc Committee consisting of President Bissell and Secretary 
Brown.  Authorizing GM Gouveia to spend up to $225K on Wastewater Pond Improvement Project.  If 
the bid goes over the $225K the Board authorizes the Ad Hoc Committee to spend up to $260K on the 
project. 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson, 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

5. FY 18 - 19 Budget Amendment Proposal – Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

After review and discussion of the FY 18 – 19 Budget Amendment Proposal, the Board moved to 
approve the proposal. 
 
Motion/Boyle Second/ Brown to accept the FY 18 – 19 Budget Amendment Proposal 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
6. FY 19 - 20 Preliminary Budget Proposal – Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
After discussion no further direction was given. 
 
ACTION:  Staff to revise and bring back final budget proposal at the July meeting. 
 

 
7. Operations Report  –  General Manager 
 
 See Attachment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

8. Financial Report  –  General Manager 
 

8.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

Motion/Boyle Second Brown to accept the P&L and Balance Sheet Reports as presented. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

8.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

Motion/Boyle Second Bissell to accept the Accounts Payable Reports as presented. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
 
The Accounts Receivable balance as of May 16, 2019 was $10,506.46.  The previous year’s balance 
was $4,049.83.  This could be due OM returning large credit balances back to some customers. 
 

 
9. Board Member Reports 

 
The next board meeting was set for Monday, July 22, 2019 at 9:00 A.M. 
 
President Bissell adjourned the meeting at 11:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  MAY 20, 2019 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Collections, Treatment & Disposal Operations - Update 

a. Flows - Influent Flows & Pond Transfers 

Influent flows May 1 – 16, 2019 3.149(MG) 

Transferred to PR 2.756 (MG) 

a. Volumes - Storage, Capacity & Disposal 

Highest Lever 2019 – 5/1/2019 = 7079.8’ = 48.68 MG = 63.7% 

2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

ii. 2018 Annual Operations Report Submitted on 1/30/2019 

iii. 22 April 2019 Self-Monitoring Report Review - No violations of the WDRs or MRP Reporting Status 

b. NPDES MRP – Surface Water Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

3. Other 

a. DSOD Dam Break Analysis / Inundation Mapping  – Inundation Study Report Submitted – EAP in Progress 

Inundation Study for Bear Valley SH Dam (No. 1088-000) sent to Sharon K. Tapia, Chief, Division of  

Safety of Dams on March 12, 2019. 

b. Director’s Terms of Office – Update 

Director Ken Brown and Director Gunnar Thordarson’ s terms will expire on 05 December 2019. 

Both directors have confirmed that they will seek another term of office.  The District will call a general  

election. 

c. CWEA Collection System Workshop – May 8, San Ramon 

GM Gouveia attended the 2019 SSS-WDR Revisions Collection System Workshop in San Ramon. 

The workshop recapped the drivers influencing regulatory change, WDR re-issuance efforts, key potential 

changes to WDR and their impacts, the causes of high volume SSO discharges, steps agencies can take 

to assess risk and system resilience, identifying potential risk factors, prioritizing system capital 

improvements. 



 
  CVCWA Annual Conference – May 15, Rancho Cordova 

 GM attended 2019 CVCWA Conference.  The conference covered future policy and compliance efforts, 

 retaining and recruiting staff, State Water Boards water quality concerns, keeping biosolids as a valuable 

 resource in a changing environment, Freshwater Mussel Study Special Project, and practical approached 

 to old and new challenges. 

d. UWPA Local Agency Collaboration Meeting – March 29, Angels Camp 

GM attended the Highway 4 Corridor Agencies collaboration meeting regarding natural disasters, 

regulatory burdens, aging infrastructure, struggles to find funds and resources to maintain the services 

 they provide to our communities.  

e. Alpine County Community Development Address Request 

The Bear Valley Adventure Company has requested an assigned address for the Warming Hut  

property from Alpine County.  The possible address would be 987 State Route 4.  Consequently, BVWD 

requested that Alpine County consider adding similar addresses for the Distric’s meadow locations. The  

BVWD pump station and Control building where the treatment ponds are located would be assigned 

addresses of 995 and 997 State Route 4 respectively. 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JULY 22, 2019 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  REVISED DISTRICT BY-LAWS 

__________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

Through the exercise Staff undertook to develop a procurement policy to ensure compliance with 

statutory requirements for public works projects, Staff engaged with Legal Counsel and reviewed the 

historical record related to the formation of the District.   

 

During this review, Staff shared, among other items, the District’s bylaws approved and adopted by 

the District’s Board of Directors on August 10, 2010 as well as approved by the Alpine County Board of 

Supervisors on September 7, 2010.   

 

Following review, Legal Counsel advised the District’s Board of Directors at its May 20, 2019 meeting 

that many sections of the 2010 bylaws were unnecessarily detailed, overly complicated and 

potentially created exposure for its Staff as well as its Trustees based on a myriad of sections as they 

had been prepared in this document. 

 

At its May 20, 2019 meeting, the Board of Directors acknowledged these deficiencies and directed 

Legal Counsel to prepare a draft revision of the bylaws for review by the Board at its next regularly 

scheduled meeting.  Attached please find this draft revision of the bylaws prepared by Legal Counsel 

intended to streamline them in accordance with Water Code section 34700. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review and discuss revised bylaws with Legal Counsel, make revisions or changes as necessary and motion to 
adopt revised bylaws as amended. 

ACTION: 
 
1. Motion to Accept the revised bylaws as presented or amended at this meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
 - July 2019 Draft Revised Bylaws 
 - Adopted 2010 Bylaws 
 - Resolution 68-39 Order Declaring District Duly Formed 



 

 
 
1063903‐1 

 

 
 

BYLAWS 
 

OF THE 
 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted July  __, 2019



 

1 
 
1063903‐1 

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL 

 

Section 1.  Name. 

This water sanitary district shall be known as the BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
(BVWD or District). 

Section 2.  District Office. 

The District Office shall be at 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, California 95223 or as 
established by Resolution and may be changed from time to time by Resolution. 

 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

 
 The purpose of the BVWD is to provide services to the residents of Bear Valley 
consistent with the Division 13 of the California Water Code.   
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 Section 1.  Number.  
 

The governing body of BVWD shall consist of five (5) elected Directors, each of whom 
shall serve a term of four (4) years.  Such terms of office to be established on a staggered basis.  
During elections every two (2) years, either two (2) or three (3) Directors are elected for the next 
four (4) years. 

 
Section 2.  Qualifications.  
 
In accordance with Water Code section 34700, each Director shall be one of the 

following: 
 
(a) A holder of title to land within the BVWD. 
(b) The legal representative of a holder of title to land within BVWD in accordance 

with Water Code section 34030. 
(c) A representative designated by a holder of title to land within BVWD, if the 

holder has filed with BVWD written evidence of that designation. 
  



 

2 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Responsibility. 
 
 The Board of Directors shall govern the BVWD and establish policies for the operation 
of the District.  The Directors shall carry out their duties as set forth in law, these bylaws, and 
other policies of BVWD honestly and faithfully. 
 
 Section 4.  Compensation. 
 
 Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation for each day’s attendance 
at meeting of the Board or for each day’s service rendered as a director by request of the Board 
in an amount established by resolution of the Board of Directions, but in no case may the amount 
exceed the amount set forth in Water Code section 34741.  Nor shall the total compensation to 
any Director exceed the total of six days in any calendar month, together with any expenses 
authorized by the Board.    Compensation for all other officers who are not members of the 
Board of Directors shall be established by the Board. 
 
 Section 5.  Vacancies. 
 
 Vacancies on the Board shall be filled in accordance with Government Code Section 
1780.   
 

Section 6.  Resignation. 
 
 A director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, to the President, 
or to the Secretary of the Board.  Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt 
of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the 
acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS 

 
 Section 1.  Elected Officers. 
 
 The elected officers shall be chosen by the Board from among the five (5) members of 
the Board and shall consist of a President and a Vice-President. 
 
 Section 2.  Terms of Elected Officer. 
 
 Elected Officers of the Board shall be elected by the Board at its first meeting in a new 
calendar year and shall serve for one (1) year, said term to commence upon election.  All elected 
officers shall be eligible to serve successive terms.  Officers shall continue to serve in their 
capacity as an officer until their successor is elected. 
 
  



 

3 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Duties of Elected Officers. 
 

A. President. 
 

1. Shall preside at all meetings of the board and such other meetings approved 
by the Board, and have the authority to call for short recesses during meetings 
unless a majority of the Directors by vote oppose a recess. 

2. Shall serve as official spokesperson for the Board. 
3. Shall appoint such committees and other working groups as prescribed by the 

Board. 
4. Shall designate Directors or others to represent the Board at various meetings, 

hearings, and conferences. 
5. Shall perform such other duties as necessary to carry out the work of the 

Board. 
6. Shall perform such duties as prescribed by law. 

 
B. Vice-President. 

 
1. Shall serve in the absence of the President.  

 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 APPOINTED OFFICERS 
 

Section 1.  Appointed Officers. 
 

A. The appointed officers of the District shall be a General Manager and a Secretary 
who may be the same person, but none of whom shall be a Director.  The duties 
of the appointed officers shall be as specified in law, and as directed by the Board. 
The Board may also appoint a Treasurer in accordance with.  

 
B. Pursuant to Water Code Section 34711, the District Board of Directors may 

appoint a District Treasurer, who shall be responsible for the deposit and 
withdrawal of funds of the District. 

   
C. The Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary. 
 
Section 2.  General Manager Duties.  
 
The General Manager is employed by the board to run the day-to-day business of the 
BVWD. 
 
Duties of the General Manager (Manager) include, but are not limited to: 
 



 

4 
 
1063903‐1 

A. Appraise and evaluate the effects of the Board policies and the manner of their 
execution, and the efficiency of BVWD personnel in terms of services rendered to 
the people of the District. 

B. Provide leadership to staff in identifying district needs, establishing priorities and 
determining the objectives, which will achieve the established goals of the 
District.  

C. Encourage and assist staff in the performance of their duties and encourage their 
professional growth.  

D. Ensure evaluation of personnel under his/her direction. 

E. Provide financial oversight of the District and Alpine County pursuant to funds on 
deposit at that agency.  

F. Lead the District management team in the preparation of an annual budget, 
control of expenditures, inventory control, program planning, changing priorities 
and public relations.  

G. Perform the function of the District’s Public Information Officer. 

H. Dispatch the contractor hired for operations on all wastewater problems in 
BVWD that require fieldwork.  The Manager will respond only if the situation is 
too complicated for the contractor hired for operations to handle. 

I. Keep the Board informed of all communications affecting the District. 

J. Establish regular office hours and ensure that there is at least one person in the 
office during those hours. 

K. Such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Board. 

 Section 3.  Secretary Duties. 

A. The Secretary shall attend Board meetings and prepare the minutes of the Board 
meetings which shall record the aye and no votes taken by the members of the 
Board for the passage of all ordinances, resolutions, or motions. 

B. The Secretary shall prepare the agenda for the Board meetings, post agendas, 
public notices and proposed action documents as required by the Board and 
government regulations.  

C. The Secretary shall keep a record of all Board actions, including financial 
transactions. 

D. The Secretary is responsible for keeping the Ordinances and all changes. 

E. The Secretary shall maintain and file with the County Clerk and the Secretary of 
State the filings required under Government Code section 53050 for the Roster of 



 

5 
 
1063903‐1 

Public Agencies. 

Section 4.  Treasurer Duties. 

A. If a Treasurer is appointed by the Board of Directors, they shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board and be responsible for those responsibilities set forth in 
Water Code section 34711 and any other as determined by the Board.       

 
  

ARTICLE VI 
 MEETINGS 
 

Section 1.  Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. The Board shall hold a regular meeting on dates and times as established by the 
Board from time to time by resolution.  All regular meeting shall be held at the 
District Office.  Such meetings may be altered as to date, time and place, as 
provided for in a Resolution adopted by the Board. 

 
B. Special meetings may be called by the President or by a majority of Directors. 

 
C. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
D. All motions made at Board meetings shall require a second to the motion prior to 

the Directors voting. 
 
E. Directors may attend any regular and special meeting telephonically as provided 

in the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
 
Section 2.  Quorum. 

 
The Board shall be empowered to conduct the business of the District whenever there is a 

quorum of Directors at a properly noticed meeting.  Three Directors shall constitute a Quorum.   
 

Section 3.  Voting. 
 

A. The vote of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting attended by a 
Quorum shall be necessary to pass any motion, adopt any resolution, or make any 
determination.   

 
B. Voting shall be by voice, show of hands, or roll call vote. 
 
C. Should a Director vote “Abstain” on a motion, the vote shall be considered a non-

vote and not counted as an affirmative or negative vote. 
  
  



 

6 
 
1063903‐1 

Section 4.  Notice of Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. Notices of all regular and special meetings shall be pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act.   

 
B. Notices of regular and special meetings.  In the case of special meetings, the 

notice, written or by telephone, shall specify the specific nature of the business to 
be transacted. 

 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 ELECTIONS 
 

Section 1.  Procedure of Voting. 
 
            All District elections shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures set  
forth in Water Code Section 35100 et. seq.   

 
Section 2.  Manner of Voting. 

 
 The manner of voting in all District elections shall be as set forth in Water Code section 
35003.   

 
Section 3.  Voting in Person or by Proxy. 
 
Every eligible voter may vote either in person or proxy in accordance with Water Code 

sections 35004-35006. 
 
 

 ARTICLE VIII 
 PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 
 Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, current edition and all future editions or such other authority 
as may be subsequently adopted by resolution of the Board is to apply to all questions of 
procedure and parliamentary law not specified in these Bylaws or otherwise by law. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 PENALTIES 
 
    The penalty for any single violation of these bylaws shall not exceed two hundred dollars 
($200.00). 
  



 

7 
 
1063903‐1 

 ARTICLE X 
 AMENDMENTS 
 

The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws by either of the following 
methods: 

 
(a) By four-fifths (4/5ths) vote of the total number of Directors as set forth in Article 

3 Section 1 of these bylaws and approval of the Board of Supervisors of Alpine County, or 
 
(b) By two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the total vote of the District in writing or cast by 

ballot at a District election. 
 
 



------~. --~". "-- --

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

AND ~HEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Bear Valley Water District 

PO Box 5027 

Bear Valley CA 95223 

-_." . ... - .. -~ . ----. --" ... "- .. .. . -.-'~--:,"" ." - -'- ' .-.. ---_ ... - .. .. '" - - _. 

Doc II 2010000634 
Page 1 of 18 _ _ -
Date: 10/14/2010 09:48A 
RecO"I'ding Requested By: 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Filed & RecO"I'ded in Official RecO"I'.ds 
of ALPINE COUNTY 
CAROL MCELROY 
COUNTY RECORDER 
Fee: $63.013 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT BYLAWS / RESOLUTION NO. 481 



RESOLUTION NO. 481 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING BYLAWS 
OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 1968, the Board of Directors of the Bear Valley Water · 
District adopted Bylaws of this District pursuant to Section 35302 of the Water Code; 

WHEREAS, amendments to said Bylaws were duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bear Valley Water District at a meeting held on 
the 13th day of September 1980; 

WHEREAS, said amended Bylaws require further amending to be consistent with 
the various amendments to the California Water District Law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Bylaws of the Bear Valley Water District, as further amended, in form 
attached hereto, be, and they are hereby adopted as the official Bylaws for the purpose of 
providing rules and regulations for the conduct of the affairs of the District. 

2. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Alpine, being the County within which 
the District is located, be, and is hereby requested to approve said Bylaws, as amended. 

3. The Secretary be, and is hereby, directed to file a certified copy of this 
Resolution with the Clerk of the County of Alpine. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of September 2010 by the following vote of the 
Board of Directors of the Bear Valley Water District, to wit: 

AYES, and in favor thereof: /)/~£~n/2~ : 1'X£~/j)eAlr R I rOH I6 
/3/S5$t,l- , a,."p.,eml9,v1 ~o~iil'ICH ; tV£'-~()N I}-J..L 

NOES: .. , IN F~v()12 

.~~~~~~~~" .. ~' J . . .. --- ,-, 

j .... ....' . :'>:: . Davi B. RItchIe 
',: .. - '". ;;;': ~::" President 

..:: ... ~~.. ~' . .' 

.-:. Bear Valley Water District 

, . ~ \,,¥ '}'~.,:-~ 

I·fierebY certify that this is a correct copy of the foregoing resolution that was duly 
and regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bear Valley Water 
District, Alpine County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 20th day of September 
2010. 

ecretary 
Bear Valley Water District 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

On September 20, 2010, before me, Barbara Howard, County Clerk, County of Alpine, 
personally appeared David B. Ritchie, President Bear Valley Water District, and personally 
known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person( s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in hislher/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) 
on the instrument the person( s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal. 

: "" ... -" ~'-.. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

BARBARA HOWARD, County Clerk 
County of Alpine, State of California 

On September 20, 2010, before me, Barbara Howard, County Clerk, County of Alpine, 
personally appeared Jearl Nelson, Secretary Bear Valley Water District, and personally known to 
me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) 
is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in hislher/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by hislher/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal. 

,,;;~~:?~7~~~h'; 
.,;;!t~{ .. ;,~.,~~~~~~ ;' 

.', ..... '''. 
- i"~' ,,-

" ',.f.- ,~~ ... 

. ,""',-,,;:':"-:'.""-
~' .. 

BARBARA HOWARD, County Clerk 
County of Alpine, State of California 

~~~I- w 
o -', 



BYLAWS 
For the regulation, except as 

otherwise provided by statute, of 
The BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

As approved 9-7-2010 

ARTICLE I 

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

Section 1 - General. 

All Directors and officers shall honestly and faithfully perform those duties prescribed by the 

laws of the State of California; particularly those duties prescribed by the Division 13 of the 

California Water Act and related authority and those duties prescribed by these Bylaws and by 

Policies and Procedures as adopted by the Board. 

Section 2 - BVWD Directors and Officers. 

The Directors of the district shall be elected or appointed according to provisions of the Water 

Code Section 35100. There shall be five (5) Directors. Two (2) officers of the Board of Directors 

shall be selected by a vote of the Directors of the District according to the provisions of these 

Bylaws. The officers of the BVWD shall be a President and Vice President. A Secretary shall be 

appointed by the Board of Directors and a Treasurer / Financial Officer may be appointed by the 

Board of Directors from among the Board of Directors or from qualified employees or members 

of the District. 

Section 3 - Qualifications. 

The Directors and Officers of the District must be citizens of the United States of America and at 

least of twenty-one years of age at the time of election and shall own real property within the 

District. 

Section 4 - Tenure of Office. 

All elected Directors shall hold office for the term of four (4) years as prescribed by the 

California Water District Code. The President and Vice President and all appointed officers shall 



hold office for a term of one (1) year at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. The manner of 

electing Directors is specified in Article III of these Bylaws. Continuity of experienced Directors 

shall be assured by staggering the election of Directors such that the term of office will expire at 

the same time for no more than three Directors. 

Section 5 - Conflict of Interest. 

No Director or official of the District shall make, participate in making or in any way attempt to 

use his official position to influence a decision in which he knows or has reason to know he has a 

financial interest in accordance with the Conflict of Interest provisions of CA Government Code 

Section 1090, Section 87100 and Section 87103. 

Section 6 - Duties of the President. 

The President serves at the pleasure of the Board and is responsible for leading the Board in its 

activities and for serving as the principal liaison between the Board and District management. 

With respect to leading the Board in its activities, the President is primarily responsible, with the 

input of committee chairs and other Directors, for setting the agenda for regularly scheduled 

Board meetings consistent with these bylaws, and for determining whether and when special 

meetings should be held. The President presides at all meetings of the Board. The President shall 

coordinate Board representation for events and functions. The President is expected to keep the 

Board apprised of his or her activities that have a material bearing on District affairs. 

With respect to serving as the principal liaison between the Board and District management, the 

President is expected to stay in regular contact with the Directors and officers of the board, in 

accordance with the open meeting provisions of the Brown Act. The President is also expected to 

keep the Board apprised on important issues he or she discusses with District management. 

Under no circumstances shall the President be authorized to take unilateral action on any District 

matter or publicly represent the District on any issue without prior authorization of the, board in 

accordance with these Bylaws. The President operates in a capacity as a member of the Board 

and not as a member of the District's management and is expected to respect and reinforce the 

appropriate roles of the Board and District management. 



Section 7 - Duties of the Vice President 

In the absence of the President of the Board, the Vice President of the Board shall perform all of 

the duties defined in Section 6 of these Bylaws and act in all respects in the stead of the President 

during such absence. The Vice President shall provide advice, counsel, and support to the 

President and act as Parliamentarian to the Board of Directors when not engaged in the duties of 

the President. 

Section 8 - Duties of the Secretary 

The secretary shall keep a record of all the proceedings had at meetings of the board. All 

documents pertaining to District affairs shall be maintained in an appropriate filing system and 

filed in the office of the District by the secretary and shall be available for public inspection. 

Section 9 - Duties of Treasurer / Financial Officer 

If appointed by the Board of Directors of the District, The Treasurer / Financial Officer shall 

periodically review financial records of the District. The Treasurer / Financial Officer shall 

assure that appropriate controls are in effect to safeguard the finances of the District, including 

signatory requirements for all disbursements. 

Section 10 - Duties of the General Manager. 

The General Manager of the District leads management's efforts in implementing and achieving 

the policies and priorities adopted by the Board. He or she has the discretion to determine the 

most appropriate means to achieve those priorities and is accountable to the Board for these 

actions. The General Manager is responsible to the Board for the operational management of the 

District and accountable to the Board of Directors to meet the operational goals of the District. 

The General Manager is also responsible for keeping the Board appropriately informed regarding 

the District's significant activities and undertakings. The General Manager is responsible for 

providing the Board with information regarding the District that is relevant both to specific 

decisions the Board is required to make and to the Board's effective fulfillment of its general 

responsibility for oversight of the District's affairs. In particular, the General Manager is 

{)L 3 



responsible for ensuring the Board is notified of the items identified by the Board as matters 

about which the Board must be notified. 

Each year the General Manager, working with his or her senior staff and in consultation with the 

Board, will develop a proposed annual budget. The proposed budget represents the District's 

plans for fulfilling the Board's annual priorities and will be presented to the Board (or if the 

Board so chooses, a committee of the Board) for consideration and approval. Additionally, as 

part of the General Manager's long-term budget planning, each year the General Manager, in 

consultation with the Board, cognizant committees and the public will develop proposed 

appropriations requests. The proposed request will be presented to the Board for approval. Any 

request for appropriations outside ofthe annual cycle (i.e., emergency requests) will be 

conducted in a similar fashion, but in an expedited manner. 

Section 11 - Deputies and Employees. 

The Board of Directors may also employ such agents, officers, deputy officers, and employees as 

may be required and prescribe their duties and fix their compensation as outlined in Policies and 

Procedures and adopted by the Board. 

In accordance with District Policies and Procedures, the Board of Directors as a body will 

evaluate and make decisions regarding the hiring retention, and termination of the District's 

General Manager. 

Section 12 - Administration of Oath. 

The Oath of Office may be taken before any officer authorized by law to administer oaths. 

The Board of Directors may, as necessary, appoint and approve the position of Financial Officer 

/ Treasurer whose duties are outlined in Policies and Procedures and adopted by the Board. The 

prescribed duties of the Financial Officer may be accomplished by an appointed Treasurer. 

Section 13 - Appointment of Directors 

In the event that a position of BVWD Director becomes vacant as deemed by Government Code 

Section 1770, the District shall notify the county elections official of the vacancy no later than 15 

days after either the date on which the District is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of 

l)L 4 



the vacancy, whichever is later. The remaining members of the BVWD Board may fill the 

vacancy in accordance with Government Code Section 1780, either by appointment or by calling 

an election pursuant Uniform Elections Code. 

The Board shall post a notice of the vacancy in three or more conspicuous 

places in the District at least 15 days before the district board makes the appointment. 

The remaining members ofthe BVWD Board shall make the appointment by majority vote 

within 60 days after either the date on which the District is notified of the vacancy or the 

effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later. The district shall notify the county elections 

official of the appointment no later than 15 days after the appointment. 

If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 days prior to the next 

general district election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold office until the 

next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the date the District is 

notified of the vacancy, and thereafter until the person who is elected at that election to fill 

the vacancy has been qualified. The person elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the 

unexpired balance of the term of office. If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office, 

but less than 130 days prior to the next general district election, or if the vacancy occurs in the 

second half of a term of office, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall fill the balance of 

the unexpired term of office. 

If the BVWD Board of Directors fails to choose or chooses not to make an appointment, the 

Board may within 60 days of the date the Board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of 

the vacancy, whichever is later, call an election to fill the vacancy. The election called shall be 

held on the next established election date that is 130 or more days after the date the district board 

calls the election. 

If the vacancy is not filled by the BVWD Board by appointment, or if the Board has not called 

for an election within 60 days of the date the vacancy, the Board of Supervisors of Alpine 

County, may appoint a person to fill the vacancy within 90 days of the date that BVWD is 

IJL 5 



notified ofthe vacancy or the effective date ofthe vacancy, whichever is later, Alpine County 

Board of Supervisors may order the BVWD to call an election to fill the vacancy. 

Section 14 - Compensation. 

The Directors of the Board shall fix the compensation to be paid to all employees and officers of 

the District. The compensation received by Directors for attendance or participation at Board 

meetings, committee meetings, ceremonial events, or any officially authorized function 

representing the district shall not exceed that specified in Section 34741 ofthe Water Code. 

Directors shall be compensated for any expenses incurred in the performance of his/her duties 

required and authorized by the Board as defined in Director Compensation and Travel Policy, 

Ordinance No. 69 Adopted March 16, 2009 as Amended. 

The Directors shall receive, for attendance at meetings outside their normal duty or for 

substantial services requiring more than ordinary absence from the place of business or residence 

of the Director, and performed at the request of the President, a per diem within the limits of the 

California Water Code, together with expenses incurred in traveling between their place of 

residence and the place of the assignment, together with other ordinary and necessary expenses 

incidental to their service as such Directors. 

The salary of the Secretary, if any, and the salary of any and all agents, shall be fixed by the 

Board of Directors as outlined in Policies and Procedures and adopted by the Board. 

Section 15 - Insurance Coverage of Members and Officers of the Board of Directors. 

The Board of Directors shall be provided with coverage under an Errors and Omissions Liability 

insurance policy covering acts performed in connection with duties as District Director. The 

premium for such policy shall be paid by the District. 

Section 16 - Indemnity of Board Members and Officers. 

The District shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend any officer or Director from a claim, 

complaint, cause of action or other proceedings arising out of, or relating to the lawful and 

official performance of such individuals duties as an officer or Director of the Bear Valley Water 

District. As to any officer or Director who is no longer associated or employed by the District at 

~L 6 



the time that such claim, complaint, cause of action, or other proceeding is brought, the District 

agrees to hold harmless, indemnify or defend such officer or Director as to any such claim, 

complaint, cause of action or other proceedings arising out of or relating to a lawful and official 

act undertaken by such officer or Director in the course of performance of hislher duties for the 

Bear Valley Water District. 

ARTICLE II 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1 - Organization. 

At the first regular meeting held following the general District election, the Directors shall meet 

and organize as a Board and may transact any other business of the District. At this meeting, the 

Board shall elect a President and Vice President from its members and appoint a Secretary, who 

mayor may not be a member of the Board of Directors. The Board may appoint a Financial 

Officer / Treasurer from the Board, management, or a member of the District. The President, 

Vice President, Secretary and Financial Officer/Treasurer shall hold their respective offices at 

the pleasure of the Board of Directors. 

Section 2 - Duties of the Board of Directors. 

The property, affairs and business of the district shall be governed by the Board of Directors. 

The Board has general oversight responsibility for the management of all of the District' s affairs. 

The Board satisfies this responsibility by providing active leadership regarding important issues 

facing the district. In particular, the Board shall provide leadership in: 

(i) defining the District' s mission and strategies designed to achieve that mission; 

(ii) appointing and planning for succession of the General Manager; 

(iii) ensuring the District's compliance with the law; 

(iv) establishing District policies for guidance of the General Manager to manage the 

District; 

(v) assuring and maintaining the financial integrity of the District. 

The Board shall act on all matters requiring Board approval. Appointed Committees shall have 

specific roles in the fulfillment of general oversight responsibilities and will conduct open 

meetings, as applicable, in accordance with the Ralph Brown Act. 

~L 7 



Special meetings as defmed in the Ralph Brown Act can be called by the President at his or her 

discretion or by the request of any three (3) members of the Board on any issue that, in their 

judgment, has a material effect upon the operation of the District or its ratepayers. 

The Board's is responsible for clear direction and accountability and shall establish policies for 

critical matters it wishes District management to pursue and set priorities for the accomplishment 

of Board directives. It is the responsibility of District management to determine the manner in 

which such directives are achieved and implemented consistent with priorities set by the Board. 

In accordance with District Policies and Procedures, the Board of Directors as a body will 

evaluate and make decisions regarding the hiring, retention and termination of the District 

General Manager. 

The Board will also be responsible for approving the hiring and termination of full-time District 

personnel. It will make these decisions, however, only after the General Manager has presented 

his or her recommendations regarding the same. Part-time and temporary workers may be 

engaged and dismissed by the General Manager for temporary and seasonal projects. 

The Board and its individual Directors and officers, have fiduciary duties to the District and the 

ratepayers and shall conduct themselves in carrying out these duties within the highest 

recognized ethical standards of conduct. 

Section 3 - Time and Place of Regular Meetings. 

The place of holding regular meetings shall be the location of the office ofthe BVWD; or such 

other locations as posted, in the community of Bear Valley, County of Alpine, State of 

California, on the third Monday of each month at the prescribed time as defmed in Policies and 

Procedures. If at any time a regular meeting falls on a holiday, such regular meeting may be held 

on the next business day. The time and place of the regular meeting may be changed by 

resolution of the Board of Directors. The regular time or place of any single meeting may be 

changed or altered by a consensus of the Board of Directors. If by reason of fire, flood, 

earthquake or other emergency, it shall be unsafe to meet in the place designated, the meeting 

may be held for the duration of the emergency at a reasonably close location as designated by the 

President of the Board of Directors. All meetings shall comply with the requirements of the then 

current Ralph Brown Act. 

IJL 8 

...-



Section 4 - Adjourned Meetings. 

The Board of Directors may adjourn any regular or special meeting or adjourned meeting to any 

time preceding the next regular meeting. When so adjourned, the adjourned meeting and all 

business transacted thereat is invalid unless all conditions of the Ralph Brown Act are prescribed 

to. When an order of adjournment fails to state the hour at which the adjourned meeting is to be 

held, it shall be held at the hour then in effect for the holding of regular meetings. 

Section 5 - Special Meetings. 

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held when required for the transaction of 

District business of such important nature that cannot be conducted at regular scheduled meeting. 

A special meeting and all business transacted thereat is invalid unless all conditions of the Ralph 

Brown Act California Government Code Sections 54950 - 54963, are prescribed to. The 

President or three (3) members of the Board of Directors may call the meeting by giving each 

Director, either personally or by mail, 24 hours written notice of the meeting. 

The order calling a special meeting shall be entered of record and specify the business to be 

transacted. 

Section 6 - Order of Business. 

No other business than that specified in the order may be transacted at a meeting unless in 

accordance with the Ralph Brown Act and a quorum is present and consent to the consideration 

of any business not specified in the order. 

Section 7 - Quorums. 

Three Directors of the District concurrently In attendance shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business. The vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors is necessary to determine 

any proposition or resolution presented. No District business shall be conducted in the absence of 

a quorum. A smaller number of Directors than a quorum may adjourn from day to day. Actions 

taken at a meeting where only a minimum quorum is present shall require all three (3) votes to be 

effective. 

Section 8 - Conduct of Meetings. 

9 

..... 
f"l..' 

o ...... 



The President of the Board of Directors and in hislher absence the Vice President shall preside at 

all meetings. In the absence of both the President and Vice President, when a quorum is present, 

the Board shall appoint a president pro tempore who shall preside at the meetings. 

All Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open and public and all persons shall be 

permitted to attend any meetings of the Board, except as otherwise provided by law. 

The Board of Directors shall conduct meetings as specified by an agenda prepared by or caused 

to be prepared by the President of the Board of Directors. 

Agenda items may be amended for a meeting in the event that other business as may properly 

come up and posted not later than seventy-two hours (72) before the scheduled meeting and 

approved by a minimum of three (3) Board members. 

All records of the Board of Directors shall be open to public inspection during business hours as 

provided in Policies and Procedures. 

Section 9 - Board Action. 

The Board shall act only by motion, ordinance, or resolution. 

Whenever, pursuant to any provisions of law, or otherwise, the Board of Directors is required, or 

shall choose to, take any action by resolution, such resolution or ordinance shall be enacted 

pursuant to the provisions of this section. Resolution or ordinance shall be adopted by the 

quorum of the Board of Directors which may be either at a regular or special meeting at which 

such resolution or ordinance is introduced. 

The enacting clause of resolutions or ordinances shall be: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE BEAR V ALLEY WATER DISTRICT FINDS, DETERMINES AND RESOLVES AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Resolutions or ordinances shall be signed by the President or Vice President and attested by the 

Secretary. 

Within ten days after the passage of each resolution or ordinance, the Secretary shall cause a true 

copy of such resolution or ordinance to be posted in at least three public places in the District for 

a period of at least ten (10) days, and shall cause such resolution or ordinance to be published at 

~L 10 



once in a newspaper of general circulation in Bear Valley, California, but only if such resolution 

or ordinance so require. 

ARTICLE III 

ELECTIONS 

Section 1 - General Election. 

The general election of the District shall be held as provided in the Uniform District Election 

Law, on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each odd-numbered year. The 

election shall be held in conformity with the provisions of the Uniform Election Law Section 

10500 et. Seq. and California Water Code Section 35100 et. Seq. and the Directors ofthe District 

shall be elected at such election. 

Section 2 - Special Elections. 

The Board of Directors, by resolution, may call a special election on any proposition which the 

Board desires or is required to present to the voters of the District. Such special election shall be 

called in the manner and upon the notice prescribed by the California Water District Law and 

these Bylaws and District Policies and Procedures. 

Section 3 - Time, Place and Manner of Conducting Elections. 

General elections shall be held at the time specified in these Bylaws. Special elections shall be 

held at such times as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. The polling place or places 

shall be determined by the Board of Directors and shall be set forth in the notice of election. 

All elections shall be held and conducted under and in conformity with the Uniform District 

Election Law, the California Water District Law and by these Bylaws. 

Notice of the time, place and purpose of special elections shall be given as provided by the 

Uniform District Election Law. Notice oftime, place and purpose of special elections shall be 

given by publication once a week for at least two (2) weeks in a newspaper of general 

publication in Bear Valley, California and/or posted at three (3) places within the District for at 

least two (2) weeks. 

Section 4 - Qualification of Voters. 



Each voter voting at an election shall be qualified as provided by the California Water District 

Law and be entitled to cast the number of votes therein as specified by these Bylaws. 

Section 5 - Manner of Voting. 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the California Water Act Section 35003, each 

parcel of land identified as being within the District and defined by an Alpine County Assessors 

Parcel Number (APN) shall be entitled to cast one (1) vote for each acre of each parcel owned by 

the voter of the district, provided that if the voter owns a parcel less than one (1) acre then the 

voter shall be entitled to one (1) vote for that parcel. For each voter who owns greater than one 

(1) acre, any fraction shall be rounded to the nearest full acre. Any fraction of exactly 0.5 acre 

shall be rounded up to the next full acre. The last assessment roll of Alpine County shall be used 

as conclusive evidence of ownership of real property within the District and the data from the 

Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) shall be the basis for the acreage ofland owned in the District. 

Where there are multiple owners of one parcel, it is incumbent on the owners to define for the 

Alpine County Clerk or other designated election officer who is the designated voter for that 

parcel. Under no circumstance shall more votes, as defined in this section, be cast for the parcel 

defined in the APN. However, the Board of Directors of the District may determine by resolution 

that for District voting purposes, the assessment book of the County shall be corrected to reflect, 

in cases of transfers ofland, those persons who as of the 45th day prior to the election appear as 

owners of land in the District on the records of Alpine County. 

Section 6 - Removal by Recall 

A Board member may be removed by the Voter Recall provisions of the California Election 

Code. 

ARTICLE IV 

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

The rules contained in the current edition of Rosenberg's Rules of Order, newly revised edition, 

shall govern this Board of Directors in all cases to which they are applicable, and in which they 

are not inconsistent with the laws of the State of California Water District Act. Any Director may 

raise a parliamentary point of order at any district proceeding. 

Ii 12 



ARTICLE V 

AMENDMffiNTS TO BYLAWS 

These Bylaws may be repealed or amended or new Bylaws adopted by the assent of two-thirds of 

the total vote of the District, given either in writing or by ballot cast at a District election. 

These Bylaws may also be amended or new Bylaws adopted by four-flfths vote of the Board of 

Directors with the approval of the Alpine County Board of Supervisors. Any amendments to 

these Bylaws shall be certifled by the Board of Directors and attested by the Secretary and be 

recorded with the Alpine County Recorder, all in accordance with the provisions of the 

California Water District Law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED AS AMENDED 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Bylaws were passed and adopted as amended by the 

Board of Directors of the Bear Valley Water District at a regular meeting thereof held on the 

16th day of August, 2010 by the following vote. 

A YES:_5 __ Board Members:_Bissell, Coffman, Goodrich, Nelson, Ritchie 

NOES: _0 __ Board Members: ____________ _ 

ABSTAIN: 0 Board Members: 
- --- ------------- , ~ 

ABSENT: 0 Board Members: 
- --- -------------

. ,.", ".i '"4:4< . .,.,,'''' ' '~ I:i ' 

. :'. ~<~~~;:it~~;~~~: 0~" '" 

CERTIFYING SIGNATURE: 

David Ritchie 

President, BVWD Board of Directors 



ecretary, Board of Directors 

Approved by the Alpine County Board of Supervisors, being the County within which 
the district is located on 9-7-2010 . 

owar , County Clerk and Ex 
Offl cio Clerk to the Board of Supervisors. 
By: Sarah Simis, Deputy 

14qtv 

-0 .... 
... ::t 
I'D 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

On August 16, 2010, before me, Barbara Howard, County Clerk, County of Alpine, personally 
appeared David B. Ritchie, President Bear Valley Water District, and personally known to me 
(or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in hislher/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by hislher/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

BARBARA HOWARD, County Clerk 
County of Alpine, State of California 

On August 16, 2010, before me, Barbara Howard, County Clerk, County of Alpine, personally 
appeared Jearl Nelson, Secretary Bear Valley Water District, and personally known to me (or 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in hislher/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal. 

BARBARA HOWARD, County Clerk 
County of Alpine, State of California 

~~~A 























AGENDA ITEM
DATE: JULY 22, 2019 
TO: BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER

RE: WWTP IMPROVEMENT PROJECT - UPDATE

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

Weber, Ghio and Associates (WGA) conducted the bid opening on May 15, 2019 for the WWTP 

Improvement Project receiving only one bid.  The bid received totaled $166,705 and the bid summary 

was reviewed and discussed by the Board at its May 20, 2019 Board meeting.   

Based on Engineering’s original estimate of $90,000 for this public works portion of the project, the Board 

authorized an ad hoc committee to meet with the sole bidder at the Engineer’s office to discuss the 

bid in greater detail and seek a reduction of costs if possible. 

President James Bissell together with General Manager Jeff Gouveia met with Matt Ospital of WGA and 

Michael McPhee of K.W. Emerson, Inc. at WGA’s office on May 21, 2019.  The bid was discussed and 

reviewed in detail and Michael McPhee agreed to review his bid for potential areas for savings. 

On Friday, May 24, 2019, Michael McPhee submitted a revised pricing schedule showing the updated 

costs for the treatment pond improvements totaling $128,675.  The ad hoc committee reviewed this 

submission and authorized the General Manager to accept the proposal as amended.  On May 30, 

2019, Matt Ospital on behalf of the District communicated the District’s acceptance of the revised 

proposal. 

Staff will be meeting with representatives from K.W. Emerson on July 25, 2019 to review the site in 

preparation for initiating the project tentatively scheduled for Monday, August 5, 2019. 

Project Summary as Revised: 

1. Triplepoint Diffuser Package - $70,314
2. K.W. Emerson Public Works Proposal – Revised - $128,675
3. Weber Ghio & Associates Engineering Fees - $20,0000 (Estimated)

Project Total: $218,989

Attachments: 

 - K.W. Emerson Revised Bid Summary as Accepted 
- Triplepoint Environmental Aeration Upgrade Proposal as Accepted 
- WGA Notice of Award & Construction Agreement Transmittal - May 31, 2019 



1,525 1,525

$ 20,030 $ 20,030

19.50 40,950

66,170 66,170

 128,675



 

PROPOSAL – AERATION UPGRADE 

PROJECT NO.: 3173R7 
PROJECT NAME: Bear Valley Water District 
PROJECT LOCATION: Bear Valley, CA 
DATE: February 25, 2019 

 
 

PREPARED FOR 
Jeff Gouveia 
General Manager 
Bear Valley Water District 

 
C/O 
Ray Sprague 
JBI Equipment 

PREPARED BY 
Triplepoint Environmental, LLC 
Tom Daugherty, Western Region Manager 
Office: (312) 428-4634 
Fax: (312) 957-4712 
Cell: (208) 699-7090 
Email: tomd@tpenv.com 

 
Basis of Design 

 
District seeks to upgrade aerated lagoon to more efficiently achieve discharge criteria based on values in the 
summary basis of design chart below. Values were derived from owner supplied data and operational 
preferences. A detailed basis of design is attached herewith. 

 
Parameter Influent Average Effluent Design Criteria 
Flow 0.062 MGD 0.120 MGD 
BOD5 266/308 mg/L1 < 10 mg/L 
TSS 363 mg/L2 < 30 mg/L 
Ammonia as N 34 mg/L 13 mg/L 

1. 266 mg/L is most current average loading. The scope of supply will offer equivalent treatment to 308 mg/L 
at the design flow rate of 120,000 gpd. 

2. TSS influent concentration was averaged from 2016-2018 available data. 
 

Discussion 
Layout and Existing Infrastructure 
The current blower has adequate air for the proposed aeration scope at the design conditions. VFD turndown or on/off 
timing is advised to achieve the most efficient operating scheme to be determined after startup and acclimation. An 
existing buried air header from the blower to the nearest dike is verified as 8” ID stainless steel. A scope of supply is 
attached herewith to replace the existing header that runs the length of the nearest dike with CPVC piping and fittings. 
Note: The supplier data sheet from Gardner Denver suggests exit temperatures of 274F. It is assumed the stainless 
header will dissipate temperatures to beow 225F as reaches the tee on the dike. CPVC is rated to 225F (Corzan CPVC). 



 

Triplepoint proposes eight MARS aerators in Cell A which receives raw influent and four in Cell B which is the effluent 
side of the baffle. The specific final aerator layout is to be decided with site management to maximize solids oxidation at 
startup and during acclimation. The aerators may need to be repositioned after one full season of operation. The on-
shore manifolds will be situated below grade. Manifold and header blow out vaults to be provided by others. 

 
System Performance: The proposed MARS aeration system is designed to accommodate growth to approximately twice 
the current capacity, capable of treating average daily flows up to 120,000 gpd with up to 308 mg/L BOD influent 
concentration. BOD effluent values are modeled at single digits year around. TSS generally corresponds to BOD in a 1.5:1 
ratio so will help the system with TSS excursions. Odor mitigation will be significant as there will no oxygen demand left 
in the treated effluent, a key cause of odors. Existing organic solids (bioavailable portion) will be mixed and oxidized over 
a season of acclimation resulting in increased volume and additional HRT leading to overall system health. Non-organic 
solids, e.g. silt, sand, plastics and the like will be unchanged. The scope of supply offers a conservative design giving 
operators significant fine tuning capabilities and removes concern of needing additional treatment for many years. 

 
Triplepoint has a robust solution for retrofitting a lagoon or servicing individual aerators without dewatering. 

 
The aerators are placed into position from a floating vessel. Air is fed to manifolds on shore via a header from the blower. Each 
manifold port features a ball valve linking to the aerators by weighted air hose allowing for individual aerator control. 

 
Scope of Supply 

 
Equipment Quantity Unit 

MARS 750T Tube Aerators with Coarse and Fine Bubble 12 ea 

High-flow Flexible Weighted Airline: From Manifold to Aerator 2700 ft 

Ball valves for individual aerator control and barb set 12 ea 

Custom Welded 304 Stainless Steel Manifold, 6-Port (2 caps) 1 ea 

Custom Welded 304 Stainless Steel Manifold, 8-Port 1 ea 

Header transition fittings ( 2-2.5” SS caps, 2-2.5” SS nipples, 2-2.5” SS Unions) 2 lot 

316 Stainless Steel hose clamps 24 ea 

Detailed Installation and layout plan (Shop Drawings) 1 ea 

Person Days Triplepoint Installation Supervision, Start-up, and Training 2 ea 

Freight FOB factory (TBD) (estimate $2000-$3000) (approximately 8-10 pallets) 0 lot 

TOTAL PRICE: $70,314 



 

Conditions of Sale 
Price and Payment 
The quote in this proposal is in US Dollars and does not include applicable federal or state taxes, fees, or tariffs. It 
remains valid for a period of 90 days. Fifty (50) percent of the quote price is due upon contract acceptance, forty (40) 
percent upon shipment and ten (10) percent upon startup. 

 
Installation 
Triplepoint Environmental will provide installation supervision as part of this proposal along with certification of proper 
installation once complete. All installation labor is the responsibility of the customer. A separate proposal can be 
supplied for aeration and baffle installation. A floating vessel is required for installation. 

 
Supplied by Others 
Air headers are not included in this scope of supply. Installation and blower connection to air distribution header and 
integration to SCADA or other plant specific data recording schema are not included. Site specific preferred 
embodiments of installation such as exterior conduit runs, cable ties, and the like are not included. 

 
Delivery 
The MARS Aeration diffusers and tubing will be delivered within a period of 8-10 weeks after submittal approval or 
receipt of purchase order. All packing and shipping costs are FOB origination unless otherwise quoted herein. Customer 
is responsible for paying all taxes and fees associated with shipping. 

 
Blowers 
All blowers to provide the recommended airflow for each MARS option at the recommended pressure found in the 

basis of design document attached herewith. 
 

Warranty 
Triplepoint Environmental offers the most competitive warranty in the industry, ensuring that your MARS products are 
free from defects in material or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of installation completion. 

 
Limits of Liability 
Triplepoint Environmental shall not be liable for any loss of profits, business, goodwill, interruption of business, nor for 
incidental or consequential merchantability or fitness of purpose, damages related to this quote. 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 
The MARS Aeration system is the subject of one or more confidential patents filed in the United States Patent Office. 
The Client, Engineer, and any other parties contracted recognize the importance of maintaining the continued 
confidentiality of the design of the MARS Aeration system. The Client, Engineer and any other parties contracted agree 
that they shall not sell, transfer or disclose any such confidential information relating to the design of the MARS Aeration 
system to any other person, organization, or corporation without the express written authorization of Triplepoint 
Environmental LLC and pursuant to an enforceable agreement of confidentiality, except as required by law or as 
necessary in connection with the use, operation, maintenance, repair, or replacement of the system. Additionally, the 
Client, Engineer and any other parties contracted all agree to preserve the confidentiality of this proposal and all 
materials attached and not to distribute or copy such materials for any other parties not previously authorized by 
Triplepoint Environmental LLC. 



InvoiceDate

6/4/2019

Invoice #

22472

Bill To
Bear Valley Water District
441 Creekside Drive
Bear Valley, CA  95223

P.O. Number Terms

Due on receipt

Ship

5/31/2019

E-mail
terry.gray@tpenv.com

Total

1010 Lake Street, Suite 503 Oak Park, IL 60301

DescriptionQuantity Price Each Amount

MARS Aeration System
(12) MARS 750T Tube Aerators with Coarse and Fine
Bubble
2,700' High-flow Flexible Weighted Airline: From Manifold
to Aerator
(1) Custom Welded 304 Stainless Steel Manifold, 6-Port
(2 caps)
(1) Custom Welded 304 Stainless Steel Manifold, 8-Port
(24) 316 Stainless Steel hose clamps
(2) Header transition fittings ( 2-2.5” SS caps, 2-2.5” SS
nipples, 2-2.5” SS Unions)
(12) Ball valves for individual aerator control and barb set
Detailed Installation and layout plan (Shop Drawings)
(2) Person Days Triplepoint Installation Supervision,
Start-up, and Training

0.5 70,314.00 35,157.00

Terms: Fifty (50) percent of the quote price is due upon
contract acceptance, forty (40) percent upon shipment
and ten (10) percent upon startup.

Currency & Taxes:
United States Dollars. This price does not include
applicable federal, state or local taxes, fees, duties or
tariffs.

Please submit sales tax exempt certificate.
Note: Non-sales tax-exempt projects outside of Illinois
will be self-accessed, payable by the customer to the
local tax authority.

$35,157.00

$35,157.00

$0.00























































 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JUNE 22, 2019 

TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  FY 2019-20 FINAL BUDGET 
__________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

Accompanying this memorandum is the final budget proposal for fiscal year 2019-20, presented in a revised 
format as requested by Trustees reflecting a comparison to the previous fiscal year as well as projecting out 3 
future fiscal cycles.  In so much as the 5 –year NPDES cycle is relevant as it relates to specific permit related 
expenses during the permit term and permit renewal, this final budget proposal discusses Year 4 of the 5-year 
NPDES cycle.  
 
Below is a summary of the highlights of the final budget: 
 
Revenue 
 
Residential Revenue  
 
Residential revenue is generally a fixed source of income due to the District’s flat rate billing structure and the 
current rate of construction at approximately only (1) new home per year adding little to no increase in year-
over-year residential revenue.  FY 19 – 20 residential revenue is anticipated to remain effectively unchanged 
from the previous fiscal cycle, less any delinquency fees collected during the prior term. 
 
Commercial Revenue 
 
Commercial revenue is flow based.  Commercial customers are charged $0.064 per gallon for water metered 
at the commercial location and sent to the District for treatment and disposal.  As water flow is tied to water 
use and water use can vary depending on the seasonal economy of many of the District’s commercial 
customers, commercial revenue to the District tends to ebb and flow as the Bear Valley economy changes.   
 
The majority of the District’s commercial customers are invoiced for the current budget cycle based on water 
use in the previous budget cycle. However, the customer’s in the Lake Alpine Basin, including the USFS, the 
Lake Alpine Lodge and the campground concessionaire, requested to be invoiced based on real time use 
and we have accommodated this request for the past several years. 
 
On June 13, 2019, the Sonora office of the USFS notified the District that the Forest Service had awarded a 
contract to replace all seven full service toilets at the east end of Lake Alpine with premanufactured toilets 
with the work to begin in September 2019.  At almost the same time, BVWD District staff determined that both 
pumps at the Chickaree lift station which service these same seven toilets had failed at approximately the 
same time.  The pumps were removed and quickly delivered to a pump service facility to evaluate them for 
repair or replacement prior to the opening of the campground.  It was determined that the cost to repair the 
pumps did not justify the expense and that the lead time for either repaired pumps or new pumps was 
approximately 6-8 weeks.   
 
Working closely with USFS staff and the campground concessionairre, District staff determined that, in light of 
the decommissioning of the Chickaree lift station following the installation of the premanufactured toilets, that 
use of portable toilets at the east end of Lake Alpine was the best approach for this summer and these 
portable rental toilets are now currently in service. 
 
However, the fiscal impact of the loss of this lift station and the flows it receives is more substantial.   Staff have 
determined that the reduction in wastewater flows from these seven full service toilets may be approximately 
319,610 gallons based on last year’s calculations.  At the District’s commercial rate of $0.64 per gallon, this is a 
net loss of approximately $20,455 each fiscal year beginning with the current FY 19-20 cycle. 
 



 
In addition, two (2) of the District’s commercial customers, including the Alpine County’s Community Center 
(aka Perry Walther Building) and the Base Camp Lodge suffered significant structural damage this past winter 
leading each building to be red tagged by the Alpine Country Building Department.  Consequently, it is 
conceivable that if these buildings remain unoccupied for the long term, the District could see commercial 
revenue reduced additionally by approximately $15,000 annually beginning FY20-21until repairs have been 
completed.   
 
In summary, projected aggregate gross revenue for FY19-20 is expected to decrease by 20 % or $33,719 from 
the previous fiscal cycle and potentially more than 28 % or nearly $44,000 in future fiscal cycles if none of these 
accounts is restored to provide viable occupancy and normal water usage. 
 
Expenses 
 
Operating expenses for fiscal year 2019-20 are expected to increase approximately 7.89 % to $626,525 over 
the previous year’s unaudited actual budget.  This increase is largely confined to two specific areas including 
salaries, wages and benefits based on the expansion of the District’s collection system maintenance program 
as well as regulatory fees. 
 
Below is a summary of the most notable expense areas that impact this final budget projection for FY 19-20: 
 

 Salaries, Wages and Benefits:  Salaries, wages and benefits area projected to increase +9.89 % for 
FY19-20 over the previous year’s unaudited actual budget.  However, due to the medical leave of the 
Chief Plant Operator during the previous year, the gross actual wage and salary expense for FY18-19 
is lower than was originally budgeted.  This caused an artificial savings of approximately $22,519 in 
FY18-19 and the projected year-over-year increase for FY19-20 salaries and wages is in fact + 3.64 %. 
 
At the same time, this + 3.64 % increase represents an increase of + 2.26 % or $8255 based on the 
development of a dedicated collection system maintenance program beginning in FY19-20.  Before 
accounting for this new part time maintenance program, the fiscal year increase from the budgeted 
previous FY salaries, wages and benefits is projected to be only + 1.38 %.   
 
With the addition of two new part time, seasonal employees, a Grade II operator and an Operator-
In-Training (OIT), this “team” or crew will assume all of the primary hydro-jetting and CCTV work as part 
of the District’s Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP).  Additionally, this team will be tasked with 
collecting and/or verifying the geospatial location of all of the District’s collections system related field 
assets (manholes, cleanouts, pipe segments, etc.) to improve the quality and accuracy of the District’s 
maps, also a requirement of the SSMP.  The GIS work will be performed by leveraging the District’s 
ArcGIS license and employing ESRI’s Collector application along with the District’s co-investment with 
Lake Alpine Water Company in a triple-frequency, multi-constellation EOS Arrow Gold GPS receiver 
capable of sub-foot to sub-centimeter accuracy.  These two seasonal employees will dedicate 
approximately 16 hours per week for 12 weeks to these various tasks for an added fiscal impact of 
$8255. 
 

 Regulatory Fees: Permit and dam fees have increased incrementally year-over-year for many years.  
However, both the Department of Dams (DOD) and the State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB) 
have notified public water agencies who own dams or have waste discharge permits to anticipate 
substantially higher fees in the years to come, including 20 % and 10 % increases respectively for the 
upcoming fiscal cycle.  As a result, the District is forecasting an increase of approximately + 12 % or 
nearly $6000 for taxes, fees, licenses and assessments for FY19-20. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Capital Projects 
 
The District’s wastewater treatment lagoon and baffle replacement project scheduled for August 2019 (FY19-
20) is now projected to be approximately a $219,000 capital replacement event ($70,314 for the Triplepoint 
Diffuser package, $128,675 for the public works component and approximately $20,000 in design and 
engineering fees).  Approximately $50,000 of the expenses associated with this project were incurred and 
capitalized during the previous fiscal cycle. In the attached FY19-20 budget proposal Staff have projected a 
capital commitment of approximately $181,000 of unpaid expenses for the project which includes a 10 % 
contingency allowance to anticipate unexpected complications or change orders during the project. 
 
In addition, the dam inundation and mapping work awarded to Mead and Hunt in FY18-19 for $19,664 incurred 
$11,768 in the previous fiscal cycle.  The draft inundation study and related maps have been submitted to the 
Division of Safety of Dams for review.  The remaining $7,896 for this work is anticipated to be incurred in FY19-
20 and the proposed budget reflects this remaining commitment. 
 
In summary, capital expenditures for FY19-20 are estimated to be $189,053 and include the treatment lagoon 
and baffle upgrade project with contingency and the remaining inundation mapping expenses. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

FY 19-20 net income is anticipated to be $17,996.  The conservative budgeting approach employed by staff 
over the past few years seems to consistently provide for above projected net income revenue year over year 
and staff believes FY 19 – 20 to continue this trend suggesting that this number is likely to be higher than 
projected.  
 
FY 19-20 net cash flow is expected to be - $97,491.  This negative cash flow estimate is due to a combination 
of higher than average proposed capital improvement projects for FY19-20, increased anticipated 
depreciation expenses as a result of a series of larger capital projects over the last several years and ongoing 
servicing of long term debt.  The Board may want to consider reviewing the District’s Reserve Policy and use 
of the CIP Reserve Fund currently funded to $425,000 to offset this negative cash flow projection. 
 
As proposed, the projected net cash flow loss during FY19-20 would be the only year in the current plus 3-year 
budget projection with an anticipated loss.  Fiscal years 2021, 2022 and 2023 restore positive net cash flow to 
between $15,000 and $25,000 annually. 
 
However, due to the unanticipated reduction in commercial revenue based on the various causes discussed 
above, Staff now project negative net income for fiscal years FY 2021, FY 2022 and FY 2023 between in the 
order of ($19,000_ to ($34,000). 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the Board vote to approve the Final FY19-20 budget and 3 year projection 
as presented and begin to discuss how to ameliorate the negative net income projections in the years ahead, 
including but not limited to use of the inflationary CPI-U index service rate adjustment, use of Reserve Funds 
according the District’s Reserve Policy and/or a full Prop 218 rate increase. 
 
ACTION: 
 
1. Motion to Accept the final FY19-20 budget proposal and 3 year projected budget as presented  
 
Attachments: 
 
 - FY 2019 -20 Budget Proposal & 3 year Budget Projection 
 - SDRMA 2020 Health Benefits Small Group Program Correspondence – July 11, 2019 
 - Memo from Dan Schroeder outlining Government Code Section 53736 re: CPI-U Rate Increase 
 - CSDA Prop 218 Guide – Pages 30 – 31 
 - BVWD March 2014 Prop 218 Notification 
  
 



Bear Valley Water District
Financial Year 2019-20 + 3 Year Budget Forecast

ACTUAL (EST) % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF 5 YR Total
FY 18 - 19 PREV YR FY 19 - 20 PREV YR FY 20 - 21 PREV YR FY 21 - 22 PREV YR FY 22 - 23 PREV YR

REVENUES
    Residential 589,935 586,000 586,000 586,000 586,000
    Commercial 198,719 165,000 155,000 155,000 155,000

                               Sutbtotal Operating Revenue 788,654 751,000 -5.01% 741,000 -1.35% 741,000 100.00% 741,000 100.00% $3,762,654

EXPENSES
    Salaries and Benefits 324,589 360,225 9.89% 378,255 4.77% 386,478 2.13% 394,899 2.13%

 Director Expenses - Meetings, Elections, Training 1,678 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Operator Education, Training & Certifications 756 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
Gas, Diesel, Oil & Filters 2,766 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Insurance 22,574 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000
Memberships & Conferences 7,078 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Office Expenses & Supplies 9,337 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Field Expenses & Supplies 20,074 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Grooming, Snow Removal & Vehicle Storage 3,003 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500
General Engineering & Consulting 5,314 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
General Legal & Accounting 16,224 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Equipment Rental 429 600 600 600 600
Repairs & Maintenance 48,178 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Laboratory Fees 14,702 15,000 15,000 25,000 15,000
Regulatory Reporting & Compliance Projects 6,305 6,700 6,700 6,700 6,700
Taxes, Fees, Licenses & Assessments 34,325 39,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Utilities 59,778 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

                              Subtotal Operating Expenses 577,110 626,525 7.89% 645,555 2.95% 663,778 2.75% 662,199 -0.24% $3,175,167

                              Net Operational Income 211,544 124,475 95,445 77,222 78,801 $587,487

OTHER REVENUE
      Interest Income - LAIF 7,448 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
      Late Fees, Penalties & Interest 7,941 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
      Expense Reimbursements  - USFS 2,870 3,538 3,538 3,538 3,538
      Expense Reimbursements - Concessionnairre 4,608 5,887 5,887 5,887 5,887

  Connection Fees (Incl Application & Inspection Fees) 0 0 0 0 0
  Other Income 408

                             Sutbtotal Other Revenue 23,276 23,424 23,424 23,424 23,424

OTHER EXPENSES

  Loan Interest 17,199 15,680 14,011 12,318 9,683
      Depreciation 111,803 114,223 123,451 122,551 120,601

  Misc Exp - Bad Debt 10

                            Sutbtotal Other Expenses 129,012 129,903 137,462 134,869 130,284

                            Net Other Income (105,736) (106,479) (114,038) (111,445) (106,860)

NET INCOME 105,808 17,996 (18,593) (34,222) (28,059) $42,929

NON-CASH EXPENDITURES (included in net income)

         Depreciation 111,803 114,223 123,451 122,551 120,601

                           Sutbtotal Non-Cash Expenses 111,803 114,223 123,451 122,551 120,601

CASH EXPENDITURES (Not Included in net income)
         Capital Improvements / Replacements (115,728) (189,053) (37,000) (30,000) (30,000) ($401,781)
         Loan Payments - Principal (39,138) (40,657) (42,326) (44,019) (41,960)

                           Sutbtotal Addl Cash Expenses (154,866) (229,710) (79,326) (74,019) (71,960)

NET CASH FLOW 62,745 (97,491) 25,532 14,310 20,582 $25,677

Debt/Coverage Ratio - Loan Covenants - 1.25 or Greater 5.560 3.252 2.477 2.007 2.205



1

Jeff Gouveia

Subject: FW: SDRMA Health Benefits 2020 Rates 
Attachments: SDRMA 2020 Health Benefits Brochure.pdf

Importance: High

 

From: Alana Little <alittle@sdrma.org>  
Sent: Thursday, July 11, 2019 10:43 AM 
Subject: SDRMA Health Benefits 2020 Rates  
Importance: High 
 
Good morning,  
 
Thank you for your continued participation in the SDRMA Health Benefits small group program. The Health Benefits 
program continues to offer competitive rates along with comprehensive coverages.  
 
The attached Health Benefits brochure lists 2020 rates. Your agency will automatically renew current Health Benefits 
with SDRMA for 2020 unless we receive a written withdraw notice by September 1, 2019 from your agency. If your 
agency would like to make any plan changes such as change of medical plan, adding medical plan, etc. effective 
January 1, 2020 SDRMA must be notified of the plan changes no later than August 15, 2019 so that SDRMA can ensure 
the plan changes are built in our system in time for Open Enrollment.  
 
2020 Medical Benefits Plan Rate Changes – Beginning January 1, 2020 
 
All medical plans will have a 3.3% increase 
 
Medicare Coordination of Benefits Plans ‐ rate increases for PPO plans 3.3%; no HMO or HDHP plans available. Kaiser 
Medicare rates to be released by the end of August 2019 and will be included in the hard copy brochure that SDRMA will 
mail September 2019 to your attention as the primary contact. 
 
Claims were the main factor that affected the rate increases.  
 
Changes to the 2020 Health Benefits Brochure for Medical plan listings: SDRMA has made minor changes to plans as 
outlined in blue on page 10 of the brochure. In addition, effective January 1, 2020 SDRMA now has an option for agencies 
that are interested in offering a Student Loan Repayment program through GotZoom. 
 
Ancillary Coverages for 2020 – Beginning January 1, 2020 
 
Delta Dental PPO plans ‐ rate decrease ‐1.5%; rates guaranteed until January 1, 2021 
Delta DHMO plans ‐ no change in rates; rates guaranteed until January 1, 2021 
VSP ‐ no change in rates; rates guaranteed until January 1, 2021 
VOYA Basic Life/AD&D, Supplemental Life and Long Term Disability rates are guaranteed until July 1, 2020. 
EAP rates are guaranteed until July 1, 2023. 
 
Upcoming Open Enrollment 
The open enrollment period this year will be October 1 ‐ October 31. Any changes made during open enrollment will 
become effective January 1, 2020. If participants do not make changes during open enrollment their current enrollments 



2

will rollover to the 2020 program year. You will receive a separate email regarding the open enrollment period/process 
no later than mid‐September.  
 
Again, thank you for your continued support of our Health Benefits program! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

Alana 
 
Alana Little 
Health Benefits Manager 
 

  
Special District Risk Management Authority 
1112 I Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, California 95814 
Tel: 916.231.4141 Fax: 916.231.4111 
Toll Free: 800.537.7790 
www.sdrma.org  
 
A proud CSDA Alliance partner. 
California Special Districts Association 
Special District Risk Management Authority 
CSDA Finance Corporation 
 
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY | This electronic message and any files or attachments transmitted with it may be confidential, privileged, or 
proprietary information of the Special District Risk Management Authority. The information is solely for the use of the individual or entity to which 
it was intended to be addressed. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that use, distribution, or 
copying of this e‐mail is strictly prohibited. If you received this e‐mail in error, please notify the sender immediately, destroy any copies, and delete 
it from your system. 

 











 
818686-2 

 
 

Proposition 218 Notification 
 

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED CHANGES TO SEWER RATES 

 
Hearing Date & Time: March 29, 2014, 3 PM 

 
Hearing Location: Perry Walther Building, 325 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, CA 95223 

 
 
Basis of Proposed Rates 
 
The Bear Valley Water District (“BVWD” or “District”) has prepared a three-year budget to plan for annual, recurring 
expenses as well as periodic expenses associated with its National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit, which is up for renewal in 2016.   
 
The District Engineer has certified a 2013 Rate Study report as of December 17, 2013 and supporting memorandum dated 
August 7, 2013 (hereinafter collectively “Rate Report”) that recommends sewer rates that meet the revenue requirements 
of the District and addresses the unpredictability and variability of charges for its commercial customers.  The Rate Report 
can be viewed at www.bearvalleywater.org and is also on file and available for public review at the Bear Valley Water 
District office, 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, CA 95223.  
 
New Sewer Rates 
 
The rate structure for residential users is proposed to change from a progressive rate to a flat fee in the amount of $90.37 
per month for all residential users.  The proposed commercial users’ rate structure will change from a calculation that 
includes residential use to a fixed cost of $0.064 for each gallon of water used, with a minimum monthly charge of 
$80.48, representing the fixed cost to be connected to the BVWD system.   
 
 
Why is a Rate Adjustment Needed? 
 
In 2011, the District’s NPDES discharge permit was renewed without requiring the construction of a costly tertiary 
treatment facility.  However, the NPDES permit still requires regular testing, reporting and potential mitigation 
requirements over its five-year term.  In 2016, the District will have to go through the NPDES permit renewal process 
again, re-making its case that tertiary treatment is not needed, with attendant engineering and legal costs.   The current 
sewer rates charged by the District will not cover the District’s costs to operate, maintain and replace aging 
infrastructure and service debt on the existing wastewater system and provide additional funds for NPDES requirements 
and renewal, even with the District’s plan to offset the additional expenses with $250,000 in operating reserves.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
818686-2 

 
 
Why is the Residential Rate Structure Changing? 
 
Since there was no practical way of determining sewer use for each residence, BVWD historically charged for sewer 
services on the assumption that sewer requirements were proportional to the number of bathrooms and kitchens in a 
home. The more bathrooms and kitchens a home had, the greater the presumed use, and the higher the fee.  Currently, 
rates vary from a low of $76.50/month to a high of $252.45/month.  Since water meters were installed by Lake Alpine 
Water Company for much (but not all) of Bear Valley in 2007, the District now has access to actual data using water 
meter information.  That data reflects that the number of bathrooms and kitchens in a home is not a reliable predictor of 
how much water/sewer services ratepayers use, and BVWD’s practice of billing according to number of bathrooms is 
not a fair measure of load on the system.   
 
Further, based on the District Engineer’s review, approximately 89% of BVWD’s expenses are fixed (“89% Fixed 
Costs”), meaning that most expenses are incurred to have a system in place and operational, irrespective of how heavily 
it’s used.  Thus, variable sewer usage only makes up 11% of the costs of providing service to District customers.   
 
The proposed rate structure addresses these realities by establishing a single fixed residential rate on the basis that (1) 
every user should share equally in the 89% Fixed Cost, and (2) there is no practical way to assign the 11% sewer usage 
cost on a residential ratepayer-by-ratepayer basis.  This will result in an increase for ratepayers that are currently 
charged $229.50/quarter and a decrease for other residential ratepayers. 
 
Why is a Commercial Rate Adjustment Needed? 
 
Commercial rates have been historically calculated based on two factors:  (1) the amount of water used by a business in 
the preceding year and (2) the relationship of a business’ water use to average residential use.  This calculation creates a 
great deal of uncertainty for local businesses because of the residential water use portion of the calculation.   
 
For example, if a business uses 100,000 gallons of water every year, it might be billed at 5 times the residential rate one 
year and 10 times the residential rate the next year, dependent entirely on whether residences averaged 20,000 gallons 
per household or 10,000 gallons per household.  If a business’ water use declines, its sewer bill could still go up, 
depending on the average amount of water used by residences. 
 
After reviewing the District’s three-year budget, the District Engineer prepared a calculation of $0.064 cost-per-gallon 
to process sewage.  Since water usage information for local businesses is readily available, the proposed commercial 
sewer rate for local businesses will be calculated at a rate of $0.064 times the number of gallons of water used by a 
specific business, with no reference to average residential water use.  Currently, the water usage for the preceding fiscal 
year is used to perform this calculation for each commercial user. 
 
Because 89% of the District’s costs are fixed, the minimum monthly charge for any commercial customer connected to 
the system, even with no water usage, will be $80.48, the same Fixed Cost assigned to residential customers.  Thus, if 
the amount of water used multiplied by $0.064 per gallon is less than $80.48, then the user shall pay the minimum 
monthly charge of $80.48, or $965.76 per year.   
 
The current minimum annual charge for commercial customers is $0 (for non-use) and $918 for all other commercial 
ratepayers.  This proposed rate structure, commonly used in other districts, will provide more predictability to 
commercial ratepayers’ sewer rates because it doesn’t include an annual reference to residential use. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
818686-2 

Proposed Sewer Rates 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                            Current                                       Proposed Rates 2014-15 and thereafter [1]_____________________ 

                
   
 Residential 

 
$76.50 - $252.45 [2]  per month 

 
$90.37 per month 

 
 

  

 
 Commercial  
   

 
$0.074 per gal. 

 
$0.064 per gal. [3]  

 
 

 
 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
[1] The new sewer rate will be effective on July 1, 2014. Starting 2016/2017 and the four years thereafter, the above rates may be adjusted annually 
up to the percentage increase, if any, of the United States Department of Labor All Item Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) – 
(1982-84 Base 100) for the twelve months ending March 1 of the prior fiscal year. 
[2] $76.50 is a minimum flat rate for up to 3 sewer service units (bathrooms and kitchens).  Each additional bathroom or kitchen is an additional 
$25.50/month. 
[3] Under the proposed rate change, the commercial minimum monthly charge will be $80.48, which is equal to residential “89% Fixed Costs.”  The 
commercial customer’s charge will be its water usage at $0.064 per gallon or the minimum monthly charge, whichever is greater.  The calculation is 
currently based on the preceding fiscal year’s water usage.     
 
Impact on Your Bill 
 
Single family residences, condominiums and Lake Alpine permittees currently pay fixed, but progressive, sewer charges 
ranging from $76.50 per month to $252.45[2] per month.  Under the proposed rates, all residential customers will pay a 
total of $90.37 per month beginning July 1, 2014.  Commercial users currently pay $0.074 per gallon for sewer service, 
with a minimum fee of $0 for non-users and $918 per year for all others.  Under the proposed rate, commercial users will 
pay $0.064 per gallon of water used/sewage discharged (currently computed based on its water usage in the preceding 
fiscal year), with a minimum monthly rate of $80.48 ($965.76 per year) to be connected to the system.  The District 
currently bills customers on a quarterly basis, which it may change by ordinance.  
 

              Compliance with Proposition 218 
 
In 1996, California voters approved Proposition 218, 
which amended the state constitution as it relates to 
the passage of property-related fees.  “Prop 218” 
requires that local governments follow a strictly 
defined process for setting fees such as water or sewer 
bills.   
 
Generally speaking, the District must (1) inform 
ratepayers that a proposed rate increase is being 
considered (this notice), (2) clearly demonstrate the 
basis on which these fees are calculated (this letter and 
the District Engineer’s Rate Report), and (3) hold a 
public hearing at least 45 days after noticing property 
owners, at which time the District hears all protests to 
the rate increase.   
 
These rates are subject to “majority protest,” meaning 
they cannot be passed if a majority of property 
owners (or renters/lessees, where the renter/lessee is 
financially responsible for the bill) impacted by the 
rate change submit written and signed protests 
opposing the increase. 

 
To Protest These Changes 

 
If you have questions or comments about the proposed rate changes 
or wish to protest, you may: 
 
Address the Board of Directors:  Attend the Public Hearing on 
March 29, 2014, at 3 PM at the Perry Walther Building in Bear 
Valley, CA.   
 
Write:  Written protests against the proposed rate change must be 
received by the District by the close of the public hearing on March 
29, 2014 and must identify the owner(s) of the property, the parcel 
(APN) number or address of the affected property and include the 
original signature(s) of the property owner(s).  Renters/lessees may 
protest if they are financially responsible for the bill.   
 
If the District receives written protests against the proposed rates by 
a majority of the affected property owners/renters/lessees prior to the 
end of the hearing, the District cannot approve the change.   
 

Written protests must be sent to: 
 

Bear Valley Water District, 
PO Box 5027, Bear Valley, CA 95223 

Original signature protests are required.  Please note that emails, scans 
and photocopies of signed protests will not be accepted. 

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Reserve Policy – October 2017 
 
 

RESERVE FUND POLICY 

OVERVIEW 

The Bear Valley Water District (District) considers careful fiscal planning essential to the long term, 
sustainable delivery of its core services, specifically the collection, treatment and disposal of waste 
water for all of its customers as well as the careful stewardship of the public’s financial and 
environmental assets. 
 
The District has determined that a key part of the District’s financial preparedness rests on sound 
reserve policies and guidelines. This policy is intended to provide for the prudent accumulation and 
management of designated reserve funds to achieve the District’s long term financial goals. 

OBJECTIVES 

Managed and allocated effectively, reserves ultimately provide stakeholders a variety of benefits.  In 
addition to financial policies established to guarantee that the District can meet the future financial 
requirements of customer demand and system reliability, reserve policies are also considered 
essential to ensure stable rates for ratepayers in the District, well-maintained public assets, emergency 
preparedness, capital improvement and replacement of assets, savings to balance budgets and the 
proper allocation of funds for the future growth and expansion of facilities. 

This Reserve Fund Policy was developed to clearly identify specific designated reserve funds and 
govern how they will be managed. It is the intent of this Reserve Fund Policy to clearly identify types of 
reserve funds as well as define the purpose, target balance, use and funding mechanism of each 
fund.  The adequacy of the target reserve year-end balance ranges and/or annual contributions will 
be reviewed annually during the budgeting process and may be revised accordingly as necessary. 

The Board of Directors establishes the following reserve funds with this policy: 

1.0 - Sewer Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Emergency Reserve Fund 

2.0 - Sewer Capital Improvement & Replacement Program (CIP) Reserve Fund 

3.0 - Sewer System Capacity Fee Reserve Fund 

 
1.0 SEWER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) EMERGENCY RESERVE FUND 

1.1.  Fund Type: Assigned Fund (GASB 54) - The District’s Assigned Fund balance classification 
reflects a fund that the Board of Directors intends to be used for specific purposes but is 
subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint bound by legislation or 
formal Board action.  As an Assigned Fund, this lower level of constraint provides for more 
flexibility by the General Manager to access and utilize this fund as emergencies arise. 

1.2 Purpose: To ensure cash resources are available to fund the daily administration, operation 
and maintenance activities necessary to provide District services in the event of unplanned 
major maintenance or equipment failure. 

1.3.  Target Balance: A minimum of three (3) months of O&M expenses to fund the District’s 
operational expenditures during a potential emergency. 



                                                                                                                             Bear Valley Water District 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Reserve Policy – October 2017 
 

1.4.  Methodology/Rationale: The District is required to have sufficient cash flow to meet the next 
three months of budgeted District expenditures (Government Code Section 53646(b)(3)).  In 
addition to holding enough cash for 3 months of operating expenses, industry standards also 
suggest setting aside sufficient cash in anticipation of an emergency system failure to replace 
the most vulnerable component of your system or one that would cause the greatest 
disruption of service. 

1.5.  Use of Funds: This fund will be used to pay for unplanned, emergency O&M expenditures 
determined necessary by the Board and/or the General Manager. 

1.6.  Funding: Annual contributions will vary depending on the current balance of the fund and 
current year regular and emergency expenditures.  The 5-year O&M expense average is 
approximately $600,000 suggesting an O&M emergency fund balance of a minimum of 
$150,000.  The Agency will strive to fully fund this Reserve every year based on excess cash 
flow as available. 

 

2.0 SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) RESERVE FUND 

2.1.  Fund Type: Committed Fund (GASB 54) - The District’s Committed Fund balance classification 
is subject to internal constraints self-imposed by formal action of the District’s Board of 
Directors.   For committed fund balances, formal action of the Board is required to establish 
(and modify or rescind) a commitment of fund balance. 

2.2.  Purpose: Fees are collected for the future replacement of existing facilities and major 
equipment. 

2.3.  Target Balance: The target balance will comprise an amount determined by the Board of 
Directors which considers both the District’s 5-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and 
the current total aggregate asset value as reflected in the most current depreciation 
schedule.  The District records depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of facilities and equipment.  The 5-Year CIP assumes replacement of capital 
equipment equivalent to the depreciation schedule.  At a minimum,   the Board should 
allocate to the fund enough each fiscal year to adequately fund the 5-Year CIP.   

2.4. Methodology/Rationale: The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) reserve fund is for system 
rehabilitation, long term equipment replacement and equipment and component purchases 
that meet the District’s Capital Assets Policy.  The fee is collected through ratepayer service 
fees to replace District facilities and equipment as they reach the end of their useful life and 
also to handle unanticipated repairs during the life-cycle.  A key objective for accumulating 
capital reserves is to minimize external borrowing and interest expenses. 

2.5.  Use of Funds: The CIP Reserve Fund will be used to replace facilities and equipment as 
necessary to continue reliable and efficient delivery of District services.  The Board of Directors 
will authorize use of planned capital reserves during the budget process. Capital reserves are 
also available for unplanned (unbudgeted) capital replacement projects. 

2.6.  Funding: At a minimum, the target annual funding amount of the CIP Fund should reflect the 
approved annual budgeted depreciation amount in conjunction with the approved 5-Year 
CIP Plan.  However, by vote of the Board of Directors, this reserve fund balance may be fully 
funded either at once or incrementally to provide for capital reserves sufficient to cover the 
District’s total depreciated fixed asset position. 

 



                                                                                                                             Bear Valley Water District 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Reserve Policy – October 2017 
 

 

3.0 SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE RESERVE FUND 
 

3.1.  Fund Type: Restricted Fund (GASB 54) - The District’s Restricted Fund balance classification 
reflects a fund subject to externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints which limit 
the District’s Board to redirecting these funds to other uses or funds.  The California Water 
Code explicitly limits public water agencies use of capacity funds collected from new 
customers to expanding system capacity. 

3.2.  Purpose: Government Code Section 66013(b)(3) does not allow us to charge new or existing 
customers an arbitrary amount to fund a future, undefined capacity expansion project.  On 
the other hand, we are permitted to charge a new customer a fee that reflects an 
appropriate share of the historic cost of the established capacity.  The amount of this fee is 
periodically calculated and adjusted through an engineering report that is subject to board 
approval.  This “capacity” fee is collected from new customers and is required by law to be 
reserved for future capacity expansion, even if no expansion plan is in place at that time. 

3.3.  Target Balance:  The target balance shall be set as a function of any board approved 
capacity enhancement plans.  In the absence of any such approved plans, no specific 
target shall be set, but the funds shall accrue as available.  At the time the District may need 
to expand capacity in the system, the target balance will be set at the amount as 
determined by the District Engineer. 

3.4.  Methodology/Rationale: Capacity charges are based on the capacity of the District’s 
wastewater system to provide service to customers.   Capacity charges are determined by 
an engineering report that establishes the basis for the charge and how it was calculated.  All 
applicants for new or additional sewer service to the District’s Sewer System shall pay a 
Capacity Charge as defined by Government Code Section 66013(b)(3) and District 
Ordinance 71 prior to issuance of a permit by the District.  Capacity Charges represent the 
property owner’s proportional capital costs associated with existing system capacity for a 
new sewer connection at the time of the connection.   The current capacity fee calculation 
reflects the recommended cost for each equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) served until such time 
as the District reaches its current system capacity. 

3.5.  Use of Funds: The funds shall be used only for system capacity expansion/enhancement 
projects which ensure the property owner’s proportional share of capacity in the system is 
associated with the specific capital cost for a new sewer connection at the time of the 
connection. 

3.6.  Funding: This fee is collected with each service application from a vacant parcel with the 
intent to connect to the wastewater system. In addition, the per new connection value of 
treatment and distribution capacity will be charged to all new land development projects 
and deposited into this account. Interest earnings will be accrued on and added to fund 
balance, using the District's earnings rate on investments. 

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JULY 22, 2019 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  MANAGER’S REPORT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Collections, Treatment & Disposal Operations - Update 

a. Flows - Influent Flows & Pond Transfers 

a. Volumes - Storage, Capacity & Disposal 

2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

b. NPDES MRP – Surface Water Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

3. Other 

a. NPDES August 30, 2018 Permit Amendment Request - Update 

b. USFS – Chickaree Campground Vault Toilet Installation Project 

c. DSOD Dam Break Analysis / Inundation Mapping  – Notice of Receipt & Review of Inundation Maps 

d. CASA Memo on Garamendi Legislation to Extend NPDES Permit Terms to 10 Years 

e. LAFCO Representation – Alpine County Special Districts 

f. Director’s Terms of Office – Update 

 





































 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICT 
REPRESENTATION 

ON LAFCO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 
Last updated: February 14, 2018 

  
 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DISCLAIMER: 
This publication is provided for general information only and is not offered or intended as legal advice. Readers should 

seek the advice of an attorney when confronted with legal issues and attorneys should perform an independent 
evaluation of the issues raised in these materials. 

 
 

COPYRIGHT: 
Copyright © 2018 by the California Special Districts Association (CSDA), Sacramento, California 

All rights reserved. This publication, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without CSDA’s permission 
 
  



 

Page 2 of 19 
 

 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  
PAGE 3 

• Introduction 
• Who Generally Pays for LAFCO Operations? 
• Do Special Districts, Cities, and Counties Always Need to Split Costs 

Equally? 
PAGE 4 

• What are the Benefits of Representation? 
• Are There Any Additional Considerations? 

PAGE 5 
• Where Should We Start? 

PAGE 6 
• Map of LAFCOs with Special District Representation 

PAGE 7 
• Table of Apportionment of LAFCO Net Operating Expenses Between 

General Membership Classes and Between Agencies Within Each 
Membership Class 

PAGE 11 
• Appendix of relevant statutes 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 3 of 19 
 

 
 
Since 1972, state law made it possible for Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) to 
expand their memberships by adding two representatives of independent special districts. 
Today, just over half of all LAFCOs have commissioners representing special districts. LAFCO 
commissioners are appointed as follows: 

 
• Two County Supervisors: Each county’s board of supervisors appoints two of its 

members to serve on LAFCO. The county supervisors also select a third supervisor as 
an alternate. 

• Two City Councilmembers: In counties with two or more cities, there is a “city selection 
committee” composed of the cities’ mayors. The city selection committee appoints two 
elected city officials (city council members or mayors) and one alternate to serve on 
LAFCO. 

• Two Special District Board Members: In 30 counties, the LAFCOs also have special 
district members. An “independent special district selection committee” composed of 
the presiding officers of each independent district appoints two district board members 
and one alternate to serve on LAFCO. 

• One Public Member: The six (or four) appointed LAFCO commissioners choose the 
seventh (or fifth) commissioner, a public member, and one alternate. Professors, civic 
activists, and former elected officials often serve as public members on LAFCOs. 

 
Who Generally Pays for LAFCO Operations? 
Originally, state law required the county governments to pay for LAFCOs. With the passage of 
AB 2838 (Hertzberg, 2000), the Legislature required cities and independent special districts to 
share the counties’ fiscal burden. Each sector (county, city, district) typically pays one-third of a 
LAFCO’s budget. Where there is no independent special district representation on the LAFCO, 
the county and cities split the funding responsibility. Statutory formulas allocate the cities’ 
default share among the cities and the independent special districts’ share among the districts 
based on each agency’s annual revenue. However, local officials can negotiate alternative 
formulas. 

 
State law allows a LAFCO to charge fees to recover its costs of reviewing boundary changes 
and other actions. Most LAFCOs require the proponents to pay these fees when they apply for 
the boundary change, regardless of whether the applicants are voters, property owners, or local 
agencies. 

 
Do Special Districts, Cities, and Counties Always Need to Split Costs Equally? 
No. Some LAFCOs have special membership formulas. Three counties, Alpine, Mariposa, and 
Trinity have no incorporated cities, so their LAFCOs consist of three county supervisors and two 
public members. The three supervisors appoint the other two commissioners and one alternate. 

 
Some counties, such as Sierra County, have only one incorporated city. Their LAFCOs have 
two county supervisors, one city council member, and two public members. The three elected 
officials appoint the two members of the public and one alternate. 



 

Page 4 of 19 
 

 
 
For reasons relating to local politics, geography, and population, some LAFCOs have unique 
membership/funding formulas. For example, in Butte County, special districts collectively pay 10 
percent of the LAFCO budget, in Sonoma County they pay 20 percent of the budget, and in San Diego 
County they pay two-sevenths.   
 
In Santa Clara County, LAFCO splits costs between the cities, county, and special districts 
evenly. However, the special district portion is divided based upon an alternative formula. Santa 
Clara Valley Water District pays 50 percent of the special district share and is guaranteed one of 
the two special district seats on the LAFCO. The remaining districts split the other 50 percent of 
the special district share based upon budget size and elect the second district representative. 

 
For a detailed breakdown of each LAFCO’s representation and funding formulas, please see the 
attached document. 

 
What are the Benefits of Representation? 
LAFCOs impact special district governance and operations whether special districts have 
representation on LAFCO or not. When determining whether to acquire representation on LAFCO, 
special districts may consider the following: 
 
• LAFCO is one of the very few regional forums where special districts can sit as equals in 

decision making with their peers from cities and the county. 
• Districts have a direct voice in policy development and decisions governing boundary 

changes, consolidations, annexations, formations, dissolutions, service extensions, power 
activation, and other actions of the LAFCO. 

• Districts participate in the preparation and approval and Spheres of Influence and Municipal 
Service Reviews, which are typically conducted on all special districts every five years. 

• Districts’ perspective and expertise are included in a commission that has oversight over the 
very existence and growth of special districts. 

• Demonstrating that special districts can take responsibility at the local-level and collaborate 
effectively with their local government peers through LAFCO fortifies the reputation of 
districts and protects against, forced consolidations and other mandates from the State. 

 
Are There Any Additional Considerations? 
The process to be seated on LAFCO is specified in Government Code §§ 56332 and 56332.5. 
 
Formerly, the process to be seated on LAFCO required that independent special districts within the 
county must initiate the process through a resolution. There was a one-year period for a majority of 
the independent special districts in the county to adopt the resolution. If a majority of district boards 
approved the resolution, the LAFCO would have convened an independent special district 
selection committee to select the two voting commissioners and one alternate. 
 
However, CSDA and CALAFCO co-sponsored legislation, AB 979 (Lackey) of 2017 simplified this 
bureaucratic process by allowing special districts to simply vote on LAFCO representation using an 
existing statutory process (Government Code § 56332). 
 
Now, special districts can participate on LAFCO simply by a vote of a quorum of what’s called the 
“independent special districts selection committee”. If special districts in a county do not yet have 
representation on LAFCO, then this committee has likely never convened. It consists of the 
presiding officer (board president or chair) of each independent special district in the county. If a  



 

Page 5 of 19 
 

 
 
special district’s presiding officer is unable to participate, the district may appoint an alternate 
representative from its board.  
 
A vote to determine special district representation on LAFCO is conducted by the LAFCO 
executive officer at an in-person meeting or by mail-ballot. Such a vote can be called by  
one of two methods: 
 

1. Upon written request to the LAFCO executive officer by one or more members of the 
above-referenced independent special districts selection committee representing 10 percent 
or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown on the last 
equalized county assessment roll; or 

2. Upon adoption of a resolution by the LAFCO proposing representation of special districts 
upon the commission. 

 
Importantly, a vote on LAFCO representation is also an opportunity to appoint the special district 
representative for the Countywide Redevelopment Agency Oversight Board. The first such 
appointment must occur prior to July 15, 2018. Should the post remain unfilled by July 15th, the 
Governor may appoint any individual to that position. (Health and Safety Code § 34179)   
   
Where Should We Start? 
If you are interested in learning more about special district representation on LAFCO, you should 
start by reaching out to the Executive Officer of your county’s LAFCO. You can find a 
roster for all 58 LAFCOs at www.calafco.org. You can also speak with your local CSDA public 
affairs field coordinator who can connect you with other special district leaders in your county who 
may be interested in working with you. Find your public affairs field coordinator at www.csda.net. 

http://www.calafco.org/
http://www.csda.net/


 

Page 6 of 19 
 

Local Agency Formation Commissions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Are you 
seated on 

LAFCo? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAFCos with 
Special District 
representation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Govern with your peers – Claim your seat on LAFCo 



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

APPORTIONMENT OF LAFCO NET OPERATING EXPENSES BETWEEN GENERAL MEMBERSHIP CLASSES AND 
BETWEEN AGENCIES WITHIN EACH MEMBERSHIP CLASS1

 
 

 
 County Cities2

 Districts3
 Govt. Code § 

County, City & Special District 
Representation [Alameda, Calaveras, 
Contra Costa, El Dorado, Humboldt, Lake, 
Mendocino, Nevada, Placer, Riverside, 
San Luis Obispo, San Mateo, Santa Cruz, 
Santa Barbara, Shasta, Sutter, Ventura] 
Except the Following: 

 
 
 
 

33⅓% 

 

 

33⅓% 
Individual apportionments in 
proportion to each city’s total 

revenues 

 
33⅓% 

Individual 
apportionments in 
proportion to each 

district’s total revenues 

 
 
 
 

56381(b)(1)(A) 

Butte 45% 45% 10% 56381(b)(4) 
 
 

Kern 

 

 
 

33⅓% 

 

 
 

33⅓% 

33⅓% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to operating 

revenues 

56381(b)(1) 
(C),(E) 

 

Los Angeles 
 

38.462% Los Angeles: 15.385% 
All Others: 23.077% 

 

23.077% 56326; 56381; 
56381.6 

Mono 50% Mammoth Lakes: 50% 0 56381(b)(4) 
 

Monterey 
 

33⅓% 
 

33⅓% 
33⅓% 

Hospital District: 25% 
All Others: 75% 

 

56381(b)(1) 
(C)-(F) 

 
 

Orange 

 
 

33⅓% 

33⅓% 
Individual apportionments 

based on population and area 
in sq. miles 

33⅓% 
Individual 

apportionments based 
on alternative formula 

 
56381(b)(1) 

(B),(C) 

 

 
 

San Diego 

 

 
 

2/7 

San Diego: 1/7 
All Others: 2/7 

Individual apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

2/7 

 
 

56328; 56381; 
56381.6 

Sonoma 40 % 40% 20% 56381(b)(4) 
 

San Bernardino 
 

33⅓% 
 

33⅓% 
 
 

 

33⅓% 
See Note #4 

56381(b)(1) 
(C)-(F) 



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

 

 County Cities2
 Districts3

 Govt. Code § 
 

 
 
 
 

Sacramento 

 

 
 
 
 

33⅓% 

 
 

 
33⅓% 

Sacramento: 50% 
All Others 50% 

33⅓% 
SMUD: 50% 

All Others: 50% 
Individual 

apportionments 
except SMUD based 
on five yr. average of 

total revenues 

 
 
 
 
56326.5; 56381; 

56381.6 

 

Santa Clara 
 

33⅓% San Jose: 16.7% 
All Others: 16.7% 

 

33⅓% 
Santa Clara 
Valley Water 
District pays 

largest portion 

56327; 56381; 
56381.6 

County & City Representation (No 
Districts) [Amador, Del Norte, Glenn, 
Lassen, Madera, Merced, Modoc, 
Plumas, Stanislaus, Sierra, Yuba] 
Except the Following: 

 

 

50% 
 

50% 
Individual apportionments in 
proportion to total revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 

 
 

56381(b)(2) 

 

Colusa Based on % population of the cities 
and unincorporated area 

 

- 
 

56381(b)(4)  

 
 

Kings 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to population 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 
 
 
 

Napa 

 
 
 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual apportionments in 

proportion to population 
(60%) and general tax 

revenues (40%) 

 
 
 
 

- 

 
 

 
56381(b)(1)(B), 

(2) 

 

 
 

San Joaquin 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to population 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

 

 County Cities2
 Districts3

 Govt. Code § 
 

 
 

Solano 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 

Tulare Based on % population of the cities and 
unincorporated area 

 

- 
 

56381(b)(4) 
 
 

 
Tuolumne 

Apportionments for the County and the 
(one) city based on the Local 

Transportation Fund per capita 
percentage. The City of Sonora currently 

pays 8.1% and the County pays the 
balance. 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
56381(b)(4) 

 

 
 

Yolo 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 
County & Special District 
Representation (No Cities) 
[Trinity] 

 

 
 

50% 

 

 
 

- 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to total 

revenues 

 

 
 

56381(b)(3) 

County Representation Only (No 
Special Districts or Cities) 
[Alpine] 

 
100% 

 
- 

 
- 

 
56381(b)(3) 

San Francisco 100% County/City - 56381(b)(4) 



 

Page 10 of 20 
 

 
1 Table does not include information for the following counties: Fresno, Imperial, Inyo, Marin, Mariposa, San 

Benito, Siskiyou and Tehama. 
2 Except for the alternative methods (exceptions) noted in the table, the cities’ share is apportioned in proportion 

to each city’s total revenues, as reported in the most recent edition of the Cities Annual Report published by the 
Controller, as a percentage of the combined city revenues within a county pursuant to Section 56381(b)(1)(B) of 
the Govt. Code. 

3 Except for the alternative methods (exceptions) noted in the table, the independent special districts’ share is 
apportioned in proportion to each district’s total revenues, as reported in the most recent edition of the Special Districts 
Annual Report published by the Controller, as a percentage of the combined total district revenues within a county 
pursuant to Section 56381(b)(1)(C) and (E) of the Govt. Code. 

4 San Bernardino County special districts alternative funding formula (Adopted by Special District Vote July 2002; 
Amended by Special District Vote March 2, 2010): 

1. Healthcare (Hospital) Districts shall be limited to payment of $1,500 regardless of Total Revenue. 
2. Those districts with Total Revenue of more than $50,000,000 shall pay $30,000. 
3. Those districts with Total Revenue between $20,000,000 and $50,000,000 shall pay $20,000. 
4. Those districts with Total Revenue between $5,000,000 and $20,000,000 shall pay $10,000. 
5. Those districts with Total Revenue between $2,000,000 and $5,000,000 shall contribute an amount not to 

exceed $5,000. 
6. Those districts with Total Revenue of less than $2,000,000 shall be apportioned an amount to be determined by 

the ratio of each district's Total Revenue as compared to the Total Revenues whose share does not exceed 
$5,000 



 

Page 11 of 20 
 

GOVERNMENT CODE – (GOV) 
CHAPTER 2. Formation of Commission and Selection of Commissioners [56325 - 56337] 
(Chapter 2 added by Stats. 1985, Ch. 541, Sec. 3.) 

 
56325. 
There is hereby continued in existence in each county a local agency formation commission. Except as 
otherwise provided in this chapter, the commission shall consist of members appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall be an alternate member of the commission. The alternate member 
may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who disqualifies 
himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of a regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) Two appointed by the cities in the county, each of whom shall be a mayor or council member, 
appointed by the city selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate 
member who shall also be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56335. The city selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the 
diversity of the cities in the county, with respect to population and geography. 
(c) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint a presiding officer or member of the legislative body of an 
independent special district as an alternate member who shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to make 
appointments that fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with 
respect to population and geography. 
(d) One representing the general public appointed by the other members of the commission. The other 
members of the commission may also appoint one alternate member who shall serve pursuant to Section 
56331. Appointment of the public member and alternate public member shall be subject to the affirmative 
vote of at least one of the members appointed by each of the other appointing authorities. Whenever a 
vacancy occurs in the public member or alternate public member position, the commission shall cause a 
notice of vacancy to be posted as provided in Section 56158. A copy of this notice shall be sent to the 
clerk or secretary of the legislative body of each local agency within the county. Final appointment to fill 
the vacancy may not be made for at least 21 days after the posting of the notice. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56325.1. 
While serving on the commission, all commission members shall exercise their independent judgment on 
behalf of the interests of residents, property owners, and the public as a whole in furthering the purposes 
of this division. Any member appointed on behalf of local governments shall represent the interests of the 
public as a whole and not solely the interests of the appointing authority. This section does not require the 
abstention of any member on any matter, nor does it create a right of action in any person. 
(Added by Stats. 2000, Ch. 761, Sec. 57. Effective January 1, 2001.) 

 
56326. 
In Los Angeles County, the commission shall consist of nine members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from its own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
also appoint a third supervisor who shall be an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of the regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the board of supervisors, who shall not be a member of the board of supervisors but 
who shall be a resident of the San Fernando Valley Statistical Area, as defined in subdivision (c) of 
Section 11093. The board of supervisors shall also appoint an alternate member who shall not be a 



 

Page 12 of 20 
 

member of the board of supervisors but who is a resident of the San Fernando Valley Statistical Area. 
The alternate member may serve and vote in place of the member appointed pursuant to this subdivision 
if that member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the 
commission. 
If the office of the regular member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of 
the former regular member until the appointment and qualification of a regular member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) Two appointed by the cities in the county, each of whom shall be a mayor or council member, 
appointed by the city selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate 
member who shall also be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56335. The city selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the 
diversity of the cities in the county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) One appointed by the presiding officer of the legislative body of a city in the county having a 
population in excess of 30 percent of the total population of the county who is a member of the legislative 
body of the city. The presiding officer of the legislative body shall also appoint an alternate member who 
is a member of the legislative body. The alternate member may serve and vote in place of the member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision if the member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of the regular member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of 
the former regular member until the appointment and qualification of a regular member to fill the vacancy. 
(e) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall be a presiding officer or 
member of the legislative body of an independent special district and shall be appointed and serve 
pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to appoint 
members to fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with respect to 
population and geography. 
(f) One representing the general public appointed by the other members of the commission. The other 
members of the commission may also appoint one alternate member who shall serve pursuant to Section 
56331. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 3. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56326.5. 
In Sacramento County, the commission shall consist of seven members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall serve as an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the City of Sacramento who is a member of the city council, appointed by the mayor 
and confirmed by the city council. The mayor shall also appoint, subject to confirmation by the council, an 
alternate member who is a member of the city council. The alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the regular city member if the city member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from participating 
in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member until the appointment and 
qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) One appointed by the cities in the county, who is a mayor or council member appointed by the city 
selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall also 
be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to Section 56335. The city 
selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the diversity of the cities in the 
county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall be a presiding officer or 
member of the legislative body of an independent special district and shall be appointed and serve 
pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to appoint 



 

Page 13 of 20 
 

members to fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with respect to 
population and geography. 
(e) One representing the general public, appointed by the other six members of the commission. The 
commission may also appoint an alternate public member who may serve and vote in the place of the 
regular public member if the regular public member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular public member becomes vacant, 
the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular public member until the 
appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 4. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56327. 
In Santa Clara County, the commission shall consist of five members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall serve as an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the city in the county having the largest population, who is a member of the 
legislative body of the city, appointed by the city council. The city council shall also appoint an alternate 
member who is a member of the legislative body of the city. The alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the regular city member if the city member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the 
alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member until the appointment 
and qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) One appointed by the cities in the county, who is a mayor or council member appointed by the city 
selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall also 
be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to Section 56335. The city 
selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the diversity of the cities in the 
county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) One representing the general public, appointed by the other four, or, if the commission is enlarged 
pursuant to Section 56327.3, the other six, members of the commission. This member shall not be a 
resident of a city which is already represented on the commission. The commission may also appoint an 
alternate public member, who shall not be a resident of a city represented on the commission, and who 
may serve and vote in the place of the regular public member if the regular public member is absent or 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
public member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 5. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56327.3. 
In Santa Clara County, the commission shall be enlarged by two members if, pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 56821), the commission orders representation of special districts 
upon the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 6. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56328. 
(a) In San Diego County, the commission, which consists of seven members, augmented pursuant to 
Section 56332, shall be additionally augmented by the appointment of an eighth member and that 
member shall, notwithstanding subdivision (b) of Section 56325, be a member of the legislative body of 
the city in the county having the largest population, appointed by the legislative body of that city. 
(b) The legislative body of the city shall appoint an alternate member at the same time and in the same 
manner as it appoints the regular member appointed pursuant to subdivision (a). If the regular city 
member is absent from a commission meeting, or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a 
meeting, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the regular city member for that meeting. If 
the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 



 

Page 14 of 20 
 

of the former regular city member until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill 
the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2000, Ch. 761, Sec. 61. Effective January 1, 2001.) 

 
56328.5. 
(a) In Kern County, the commission, which consists of seven members, augmented pursuant to Section 
56332, shall be additionally augmented by the appointment of an eighth member and a ninth member. 
(b) The eighth member shall, notwithstanding subdivision (b) of Section 56325, be a member of the 
legislative body of the city in the county having the largest population, appointed by the legislative body of 
that city. 
The legislative body of the city shall appoint an alternate member at the same time and in the same 
manner as it appoints the eighth regular member. If the regular city member is absent from a commission 
meeting, or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate member may serve 
and vote in place of the regular city member for that meeting. If the office of the regular city member 
becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member 
until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) The ninth member shall represent the general public, but shall not be a member of the governing body 
of any local agency. The ninth member shall be appointed by the four members of the commission 
appointed by the county supervisors and the independent special district selection committee. Those 
commission members may also appoint an alternate public member, who is not a member of the 
governing body of any local agency, who may serve and vote in the place of the regular public member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision if that regular public member is absent or disqualifies himself or 
herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular public member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of that former regular public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public 
member pursuant to this subdivision to fill the vacancy. 
(Added by Stats. 2005, Ch. 559, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2006.) 

 
56329. 
If there is no city in the county, the commission shall consist of five members, appointed as follows which 
may be further augmented pursuant to Sections 56332 and 56332.5: 
(a) Three appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors 
shall appoint a fourth supervisor who is an alternate member of the commission. The alternate member 
may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who disqualifies 
himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of a regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) Two representing the general public appointed by the other three members of the commission. 
Appointment of the public member and alternate public member shall be subject to the affirmative vote of 
at least one of the members selected by each of the other appointing authorities. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 7. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56331. 
When appointing a public member pursuant to Sections 56325, 56326, 56326.5, 56327, 56328, 56328.5,   
and 56329, the commission may also appoint one alternate public member who may serve and vote in 
place of a regular public member who is absent or who disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a 
meeting of the commission. The public member and the alternate public member shall be residents of the 
county of the appointing commission. 
If the office of a regular public member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the former regular public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill 
the vacancy. 
No person appointed as a public member or alternate public member pursuant to this chapter shall be an 
officer or employee of the county or any city or district with territory in the county, provided, however, that 
any officer or employee serving on January 1, 1994, may complete the term for which he or she was 
appointed. 
(Amended by Stats. 2016, Ch. 165, Sec. 3. (AB 2910) Effective January 1, 2017.) 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56331.','6.3.2.2','2016','165','3',%20'id_6cd0f7ac-bbf3-11e6-bdd8-d5db002bdb48')


 

Page 15 of 20 
 

56331.3. 
If two or more members are absent or disqualify themselves from participating in a meeting of the 
commission, any alternate member who is authorized to serve and vote in the place of a member shall 
only have one vote. 
(Added by Stats. 1987, Ch. 1327, Sec. 4.) 

 
56332.   
(a) The independent special district selection committee shall consist of the presiding officer of the 
legislative body of each independent special district. However, if the presiding officer of an independent 
special district is unable to participate in a meeting or election of the independent special district selection 
committee, the legislative body of the district may appoint one of its members as an alternate to participate 
in the selection committee in the presiding officer’s place. Those districts shall include districts located 
wholly within the county and those containing territory within the county representing 50 percent or more of 
the assessed value of taxable property of the district, as shown on the last equalized county assessment 
roll. Each member of the committee shall be entitled to one vote for each independent special district of 
which he or she is the presiding officer or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body. 
Members representing a majority of the eligible districts shall constitute a quorum. 
(b) The executive officer shall call and give written notice of all meetings of the members of the selection 
committee. A meeting shall be called and held under one of the following circumstances: 
(1) Whenever the executive officer anticipates that a vacancy will occur within the next 90 days among the 
members or alternate member representing independent special districts on the commission. 
(2) Whenever a vacancy exists among the members or alternate member representing independent 
special districts upon the commission. 
(3) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee representing 
districts having 10 percent or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown 
on the last equalized county assessment roll. 
(4) Upon the adoption of a resolution of intention pursuant to Section 56332.5. 
(5) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee notifying the 
executive officer of the need to appoint a member representing independent special districts on an 
oversight board pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision (j) of Section 34179 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 
(c) The selection committee shall appoint two regular members and one alternate member to the 
commission. The members so appointed shall be elected or appointed members of the legislative body of 
an independent special district residing within the county but shall not be members of the legislative body 
of a city or county. If one of the regular district members is absent from a commission meeting or 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate district member may serve and 
vote in place of the regular district member for that meeting. Service on the commission by a regular 
district member shall not disqualify, or be cause for disqualification of, the member from acting on 
proposals affecting the special district on whose legislative body the member serves. The special district 
selection committee may, at the time it appoints a member or alternate, provide that the member or 
alternate is disqualified from voting on proposals affecting the district on whose legislative body the 
member serves. 
(d) If the office of a regular district member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular district member until the appointment and qualification of a regular district 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(e) A majority of the independent special district selection committee may determine to conduct the 
committee’s business by mail, including holding all elections by mailed ballot, pursuant to subdivision (f). 
(f) If the independent special district selection committee has determined to conduct the committee’s 
business by mail or if the executive officer determines that a meeting of the special district selection 
committee is not feasible, the executive officer shall conduct the business of the committee by mail. 
Elections by mail shall be conducted as provided in this subdivision. 
(1) The executive officer shall prepare and deliver a call for nominations to each eligible district. The 
presiding officer, or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may respond in writing by 
the date specified in the call for nominations, which date shall be at least 30 days from the date on which 
the executive officer mailed the call for nominations to the eligible district. 
(2) At the end of the nominating period, if only one candidate is nominated for a vacant seat, that candidate 
shall be deemed appointed. If two or more candidates are nominated, the executive officer shall prepare 
and deliver one ballot and voting instructions to each eligible district. The ballot shall include the names of 
all nominees and the office for which each was nominated. Each presiding officer, or his or her alternate as 
designated by the governing body, shall return the ballot to the executive officer by the date specified in 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56332.','6.3.2.2','2017','203','1',%20'id_6912cd35-e530-11e7-99d3-2f570f4f10eb')


 

Page 16 of 20 
 

the voting instructions, which date shall be at least 30 days from the date on which the executive officer 
mailed the ballot to the eligible district. 
(3) The call for nominations, ballots, and voting instructions shall be delivered by certified mail to each 
eligible district. As an alternative to the delivery by certified mail, the executive officer, with prior 
concurrence of the presiding officer or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may 
transmit materials by electronic mail. 
(4) If the executive officer has transmitted the call for nominations or ballots by electronic mail, the 
presiding officer, or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may respond to the 
executive officer by electronic mail. 
(5) Each returned nomination and ballot shall be signed by the presiding officer or his or her alternate as 
designated by the governing body of the eligible district. 
(6) For an election to be valid, at least a quorum of the special districts must submit valid ballots. The 
candidate receiving the most votes shall be elected, unless another procedure has been adopted by the 
selection committee. Any nomination and ballot received by the executive officer after the date specified is 
invalid, provided, however, that if a quorum of ballots is not received by that date, the executive officer 
shall extend the date to submit ballots by 60 days and notify all districts of the extension. The executive 
officer shall announce the results of the election within seven days of the date specified. 
(7) For a vote on special district representation to be valid, at least a quorum of the special districts must 
submit valid ballots. By majority vote of those district representatives voting on the issue, the selection 
committee shall either accept or deny representation. 
(8) All election materials shall be retained by the executive officer for a period of at least six months after 
the announcement of the election results. 
(g) For purposes of this section, “executive officer” means the executive officer or designee as authorized 
by the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2017, Ch. 203, Sec. 1. (AB 979) Effective January 1, 2018.) 

56332.5.   
(a) If the commission does not have representation from independent special districts on or before January 
1, 2001, the commission shall initiate proceedings for representation of independent special districts upon 
the commission if either of the following occur: 
(1) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee representing 
districts having 10 percent or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown 
on the last equalized county assessment roll. 
(2) Upon adoption of a resolution by the commission proposing representation of special districts upon the 
commission. 
(b) The commission, at its next regular meeting, shall adopt a resolution of intention. The resolution of 
intention shall state whether the proceedings are initiated by the commission or by an independent special 
district or districts, in which case, the names of those districts shall be set forth. The commission shall 
order the executive officer to call and give notice of a meeting of the independent special district selection 
committee to be held within 15 days after the adoption of the resolution in order to determine whether 
independent special districts shall accept representation on the commission and appoint independent 
special district representation pursuant to Section 56332. 
(Amended by Stats. 2017, Ch. 203, Sec. 2. (AB 979) Effective January 1, 2018.) 

56333.  
When a commission is enlarged to seven members as provided in Section 56332, the public members 
appointed pursuant to Sections 56325 and 56329 shall thereafter be appointed by members of the 
commission representing cities, counties, and special districts. Those appointments shall be made at the 
times and in the manner provided in Section 56334. 
(Amended by Stats. 2001, Ch. 388, Sec. 6. Effective January 1, 2002.) 

 
56334. 
The term of office of each member shall be four years and until the appointment and qualification of his or 
her successor. Upon enlargement of the commission by two members, as provided in Section 56332, the 
new members first appointed to represent independent special districts shall classify themselves by lot so 
that the expiration date of the term of office of one new member coincides with the existing member who 
holds the office represented by the original two-year term on the commission and the term of office of the 
other new member coincides with the existing member who holds the office represented by the original 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56332.5.','6.3.2.2','2017','203','2',%20'id_7e7b25f7-e530-11e7-99d3-2f570f4f10eb')


 

Page 17 of 20 
 

four-year term on the commission. The body which originally appointed a member whose term has expired 
shall appoint his or her successor for a full term of four years. Any member may be removed at any time 
and without cause by the body appointing that member. The expiration date of the term of office of each 
member shall be the first Monday in May in the year in which the term of the member expires, unless 
procedures adopted by the commission specify an alternate date to apply uniformly to all members. 
However, the length of a term of office shall not be extended more than once. Any vacancy in the 
membership of the commission shall be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the body which 
originally appointed the member whose office has become vacant. 
The chairperson of the commission shall be selected by the members of the commission. 
Commission members and alternates shall be reimbursed for the actual amount of their reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred in attending meetings and in performing the duties of their office. The 
commission may authorize payment of a per diem to commission members and alternates for each day 
while they are in attendance at meetings of the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2002, Ch. 664, Sec. 121. Effective January 1, 2003.) 

 
56335. 
In each county containing two or more cities, regular and alternate city members to the commission shall 
be appointed by the city selection committee organized in the county pursuant to and in the manner 
provided in Article 11 (commencing with Section 50270) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 1. Regular 
members of the commission shall be appointed by the city selection committee pursuant to Sections 
56325, 56326, and 56327. 
The city selection committee shall appoint one alternate member to the commission in the same manner 
as it appoints a regular member. If one of the regular city members is absent from a commission meeting, 
or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate member may serve and vote 
in place of that regular city member for that meeting. 
Except in the case of a member appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 56326 or subdivision (b) 
of Section 56327, a city selection committee, may, at the time it appoints a member or alternate, provide 
that the member or alternate is disqualified from voting on proposals affecting the city which the member 
or alternate represents. 
If the office of a regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the former regular city member until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill 
the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 1986, Ch. 86, Sec. 2.) 

 
56336. 
Each commission may adopt regulations with respect to disqualification of members or alternates from 
participating in the review of a proposal. In the absence, however, of those regulations, Section 56332 or 
56335 shall apply. The representation by a member or alternate of a city or district shall not disqualify, or 
be cause for disqualification of, the member or alternate from acting on a proposal affecting the city or the 
district, and any regulation providing for the disqualification of a city or district representative for that 
reason is null and void. 
(Amended by Stats. 1986, Ch. 86, Sec. 3.) 

 
56337. 
A city, county, or district officer may serve as a member of the commission while holding office as a city, 
county, or district officer. If a member who is a city, county, or district officer ceases to be an officer of a 
city, county, or district during his or her term, his or her membership on the commission shall be 
considered vacant. 
(Amended by Stats. 2004, Ch. 355, Sec. 4.5. Effective January 1, 2005.) 
 
Health and Safety Code (HSC) 
CHAPTER 4. Oversight Boards [34179 - 34181] 
 (Chapter 4 added by Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5, Sec. 7.) 
 
34179. 
   
(a) Each successor agency shall have an oversight board composed of seven members. The members 
shall elect one of their members as the chairperson and shall report the name of the chairperson and 
other members to the Department of Finance on or before May 1, 2012. Members shall be selected as 
follows: 

javascript:submitCodesValues('34179.','26.6.4','2015','325','11',%20'id_07c4f699-62fb-11e5-a6d6-9e5edb639af6')


 

Page 18 of 20 
 

(1) One member appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(2) One member appointed by the mayor for the city that formed the redevelopment agency. 
(3) (A) One member appointed by the largest special district, by property tax share, with territory in the 
territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, which is of the type of special district that is 
eligible to receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188. 
(B)  On or after the effective date of this subparagraph, the county auditor-controller may determine 
which is the largest special district for purposes of this section. 
(4) One member appointed by the county superintendent of education to represent schools if the 
superintendent is elected. If the county superintendent of education is appointed, then the appointment 
made pursuant to this paragraph shall be made by the county board of education. 
(5) One member appointed by the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges to represent 
community college districts in the county. 
(6) One member of the public appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(7) One member representing the employees of the former redevelopment agency appointed by the 
mayor or chair of the board of supervisors, as the case may be, from the recognized employee 
organization representing the largest number of former redevelopment agency employees employed by 
the successor agency at that time. In the case where city or county employees performed administrative 
duties of the former redevelopment agency, the appointment shall be made from the recognized 
employee organization representing those employees. If a recognized employee organization does not 
exist for either the employees of the former redevelopment agency or the city or county employees 
performing administrative duties of the former redevelopment agency, the appointment shall be made 
from among the employees of the successor agency. In voting to approve a contract as an enforceable 
obligation, a member appointed pursuant to this paragraph shall not be deemed to be interested in the 
contract by virtue of being an employee of the successor agency or community for purposes of Section 
1090 of the Government Code. 
(8) If the county or a joint powers agency formed the redevelopment agency, then the largest city by 
acreage in the territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency may select one member. If 
there are no cities with territory in a project area of the redevelopment agency, the county 
superintendent of education may appoint an additional member to represent the public. 
(9) If there are no special districts of the type that are eligible to receive property tax pursuant to Section 
34188, within the territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, then the county may 
appoint one member to represent the public. 
(10) If a redevelopment agency was formed by an entity that is both a charter city and a county, the 
oversight board shall be composed of seven members selected as follows: three members appointed by 
the mayor of the city, if that appointment is subject to confirmation by the county board of supervisors, 
one member appointed by the largest special district, by property tax share, with territory in the territorial 
jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, which is the type of special district that is eligible to 
receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188, one member appointed by the county 
superintendent of education to represent schools, one member appointed by the Chancellor of the 
California Community Colleges to represent community college districts, and one member representing 
employees of the former redevelopment agency appointed by the mayor of the city if that appointment is 
subject to confirmation by the county board of supervisors, to represent the largest number of former 
redevelopment agency employees employed by the successor agency at that time. 
(11) Each appointing authority identified in this subdivision may, but is not required to, appoint alternate 
representatives to serve on the oversight board as may be necessary to attend any meeting of the 
oversight board in the event that the appointing authority’s primary representative is unable to attend 
any meeting for any reason. If an alternate representative attends any meeting in place of the primary 
representative, the alternate representative shall have the same participatory and voting rights as all 
other attending members of the oversight board. 
(b) The Governor may appoint individuals to fill any oversight board member position described in 
subdivision (a) that has not been filled by May 15, 2012, or any member position that remains vacant for 
more than 60 days. 
(c) The oversight board may direct the staff of the successor agency to perform work in furtherance of 
the oversight board’s and the successor agency’s duties and responsibilities under this part. The 
successor agency shall pay for all of the costs of meetings of the oversight board and may include such 
costs in its administrative budget. Oversight board members shall serve without compensation or 
reimbursement for expenses. 
(d) Oversight board members are protected by the immunities applicable to public entities and public 
employees governed by Part 1 (commencing with Section 810) and Part 2 (commencing with Section 
814) of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 



 

Page 19 of 20 
 

(e) A majority of the total membership of the oversight board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. A majority vote of the total membership of the oversight board is required for 
the oversight board to take action. The oversight board shall be deemed to be a local entity for purposes 
of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the California Public Records Act, and the Political Reform Act of 1974. All 
actions taken by the oversight board shall be adopted by resolution. 
(f) All notices required by law for proposed oversight board actions shall also be posted on the 
successor agency’s Internet Web site or the oversight board’s Internet Web site. 
(g) Each member of an oversight board shall serve at the pleasure of the entity that appointed such 
member. 
(h) (1) The department may review an oversight board action taken pursuant to this part. Written notice 
and information about all actions taken by an oversight board shall be provided to the department as an 
approved resolution by electronic means and in a manner of the department’s choosing. Without 
abrogating the department’s authority to review all matters related to the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule pursuant to Section 34177, oversight boards are not required to submit the following 
oversight board actions for department approval: 
(A) Meeting minutes and agendas. 
(B) Administrative budgets. 
(C) Changes in oversight board members, or the selection of an oversight board chair or vice chair. 
(D) Transfers of governmental property pursuant to an approved long-range property management plan. 
(E) Transfers of property to be retained by the sponsoring entity for future development pursuant to an 
approved long-range property management plan. 
(2) An oversight board action submitted in a manner specified by the department shall become effective 
five business days after submission, unless the department requests a review of the action. Each 
oversight board shall designate an official to whom the department may make those requests and who 
shall provide the department with the telephone number and e-mail contact information for the purpose 
of communicating with the department pursuant to this subdivision. Except as otherwise provided in this 
part, in the event that the department requests a review of a given oversight board action, it shall have 
40 days from the date of its request to approve the oversight board action or return it to the oversight 
board for reconsideration and the oversight board action shall not be effective until approved by the 
department. In the event that the department returns the oversight board action to the oversight board 
for reconsideration, the oversight board shall resubmit the modified action for department approval and 
the modified oversight board action shall not become effective until approved by the department. If the 
department reviews a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, the department may eliminate or 
modify any item on that schedule prior to its approval. The county auditor-controller shall reflect the 
actions of the department in determining the amount of property tax revenues to allocate to the 
successor agency. The department shall provide notice to the successor agency and the county auditor-
controller as to the reasons for its actions. To the extent that an oversight board continues to dispute a 
determination with the department, one or more future Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules may 
reflect any resolution of that dispute. The department may also agree to an amendment to a Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule to reflect a resolution of a disputed item; however, this shall not affect a 
past allocation of property tax or create a liability for any affected taxing entity. 
(i) Oversight boards shall have fiduciary responsibilities to holders of enforceable obligations and the 
taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other revenues pursuant to Section 
34188. Further, the provisions of Division 4 (commencing with Section 1000) of the Government Code 
shall apply to oversight boards. Notwithstanding Section 1099 of the Government Code, or any other 
law, any individual may simultaneously be appointed to up to five oversight boards and may hold an 
office in a city, county, city and county, special district, school district, or community college district. 
(j) Except as specified in subdivision (q), commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where 
more than one oversight board was created by operation of the act adding this part, there shall be only 
one oversight board, which shall be staffed by the county auditor-controller, by another county entity 
selected by the county auditor-controller, or by a city within the county that the county auditor-controller 
may select after consulting with the department. Pursuant to Section 34183, the county auditor-
controller may recover directly from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and distribute to the 
appropriate city or county entity, reimbursement for all costs incurred by it or by the city or county 
pursuant to this subdivision, which shall include any associated startup costs. However, if only one 
successor agency exists within the county, the county auditor-controller may designate the successor 
agency to staff the oversight board. The oversight board is appointed as follows: 
(1) One member may be appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(2) One member may be appointed by the city selection committee established pursuant to Section 
50270 of the Government Code. In a city and county, the mayor may appoint one member. 



 

Page 20 of 20 
 

(3) One member may be appointed by the independent special district selection committee established 
pursuant to Section 56332 of the Government Code, for the types of special districts that are eligible to 
receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188. 
(4) One member may be appointed by the county superintendent of education to represent schools if 
the superintendent is elected. If the county superintendent of education is appointed, then the 
appointment made pursuant to this paragraph shall be made by the county board of education. 
(5) One member may be appointed by the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges to represent 
community college districts in the county. 
(6) One member of the public may be appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(7) One member may be appointed by the recognized employee organization representing the largest 
number of successor agency employees in the county. 
(k) The Governor may appoint individuals to fill any oversight board member position described in 
subdivision (j) that has not been filled by July 15, 2018, or any member position that remains vacant for 
more than 60 days. 
(l) Commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where only one oversight board was created 
by operation of the act adding this part, then there will be no change to the composition of that oversight 
board as a result of the operation of subdivision (j). 
(m) Any oversight board for a given successor agency, with the exception of countywide oversight 
boards, shall cease to exist when the successor agency has been formally dissolved pursuant to 
Section 34187. A county oversight board shall cease to exist when all successor agencies subject to its 
oversight have been formally dissolved pursuant to Section 34187. 
(n) An oversight board may direct a successor agency to provide additional legal or financial advice than 
what was given by agency staff. 
(o) An oversight board is authorized to contract with the county or other public or private agencies for 
administrative support. 
(p) On matters within the purview of the oversight board, decisions made by the oversight board 
supersede those made by the successor agency or the staff of the successor agency. 
(q) (1) Commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where more than 40 oversight boards 
were created by operation of the act adding this part, there shall be five oversight boards, which shall 
each be staffed in the same manner as specified in subdivision (j). The membership of each oversight 
board shall be as specified in paragraphs (1) through (7), inclusive, of subdivision (j). 
(2) The oversight boards shall be numbered one through five, and their respective jurisdictions shall 
encompass the territory located within the respective borders of the first through fifth county board of 
supervisors districts, as those borders existed on July 1, 2018. Except as specified in paragraph (3), 
each oversight board shall have jurisdiction over each successor agency located within its borders. 
(3) If a successor agency has territory located within more than one county board of supervisors’ district, 
the county board of supervisors shall, no later than July 15, 2018, determine which oversight board shall 
have jurisdiction over that successor agency. The county board of supervisors or their designee shall 
report this information to the successor agency and the department by the aforementioned date. 
(4) The successor agency to the former redevelopment agency created by a county where more than 40 
oversight boards were created by operation of the act adding this part, shall be under the jurisdiction of 
the oversight board with the fewest successor agencies under its jurisdiction. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 325, Sec. 11. (SB 107) Effective September 22, 2015.) 
 



P.O. Box 158-99 Water Street, Markleeville, CA 96120  (530) 694-2281  /  Fax (530) 694-2491 
Internet Address: http://www.alpinecountyca.gov  /  email: ttremayne@alpinecountyca.gov 

Teola L. Tremayne, County Clerk 
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
Ex Officio Registrar of Voters 
 

COUNTY OF ALPINE 
Office of the County Clerk 
 

June 4, 2019 

Bear Valley Water District 
P.O. Box 5027 
Bear Valley CA 95223  

Attn:  Jeff Goueiva, General Manager 
Judi Silber, Office Manager 

Dear Jeff and Judy: 

Preparations are currently in progress for the November 5, 2019 election.  Several items will 
need to be acted upon by your district board in conjunction with the required “Notice of 
Election”.  Please provide in writing the information outlined below. 

1. NOTICE CALLING THE ELECTION

The general district election will be held on November 5, 2019.  Pursuant to Elections
Code §10509, on the 125th day (July 3, 2019) prior to the day fixed for the general
district election, the secretary shall deliver a notice to the county elections official.  The
notice shall bear the secretary’s signature and the district seal and shall also contain all
of the following:

Please include in the notice, in case of a tie vote, how the method of selecting the winner
will be determined, and who is responsible for determining the winner.

A. Elective offices

The elective office of this district to be filled at the next general district election,
specifying which offices, if any, are for the balance of an unexpired term.

 

B. Candidate’s statement — number of words

The district board must determine whether to limit candidate statements of
qualifications to 200 words or authorize an extension to 400 words (We
recommend 200 words).  (Reference: Elections Code §13307(a))

It is the Districts responsibility to ensure accurate information is provided to the Registrar’s 
office when a vacancy occurs. According to law, you have 15 days to notify the Registrar’s 
office of the vacancy. If you have a vacancy occur between the date of your resolution and 
the beginning of the nomination period, you must notify the Registrar within 48 hours of 
vacancy.



BV Water District 2019 Election 
June 4, 2019 
page 2 

C. Candidate’s statement costs

The district board must determine whether the individual candidate(s) or the
district will pay for the publication of the voluntary candidates’ statements included
in the Sample Official Ballot Pamphlet.  If prepayment is required, a statement to
this effect must be included in the notice.  The Registrar of Voters office will then
direct candidates to prepay the estimated costs at the district office or the County
Clerk’s office prior to the statement being filed with the nomination documents.

Enclosed is a sample notice, which may be of assistance to you in providing the required 
information.  The deadline for submission of the notice for the November 5, 2019 
Utility District Election is no later than July 3, 2019.  This date is to ensure that 
the information, for your general board member election, is included in the 
Candidates Guide that is prepared and distributed by this office.   

2. NOTICE OF DISTRICT ELECTION AND PUBLICATION OF ELECTION NOTICE

Elections Code §12112 requires that we publish a notice of election providing
information on the date of the election, offices for which candidates may file,
qualifications required by your principal act, etc.  Since we have no newspaper of
general circulation in Alpine County, the Attorney General has determined that we may
post rather than publish.  Your district board has a choice of how they would prefer this
required publication:

A. Combined election notice with other districts

In an effort to reduce costs to the district(s) while still meeting requirements of code, we 
propose to post one election notice, combining information on all special districts 
scheduled for election on November 5, 2019. 

OR 

B. Individual district notice

If your district board prefers an individual election notice, I will prepare an individual 
notice and only post it within your district. 

Please complete the attached two forms (“Notice of Election” and “Publication of Notice 
of Election”).  They are to be submitted with the election resolution. 

3. REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS

The Board of Supervisors adopted a Resolution establishing a schedule of fees and 
charges for the administration of elections by Alpine County Elections.

A bill will be submitted to your district after the November 5, 2019 election.



BV Water District 2019 Election 
June 4, 2019 
page 3 

4. CERTIFICATION OF MAPS AND BOUNDARIES

Elections Code §10522 requires that at least 125 days before the election a current map 
and boundary description be delivered to the Registrar of Voters.  For the November 5, 
2019 Election, our administrative deadline is July 3, 2019.  If, however, there have 
been no boundary changes since your last election, you may certify the map and 
boundary description, which we have on file, as being current. You can do so, by 
enclosing a signed letter stating this information, or stating that there has been no 
boundary changes in your resolution submitted to our department.   

5. OTHER

A. If your district is contemplating placing a measure in the November 5, 2019
Election, please coordinate this with our office at the earliest date possible.
The administrative deadline for a district measure to be consolidated with the
November election is August 14, 2019.  If this deadline cannot be met, contact this
office immediately.  It is important for your district and our office to coordinate the
details of what and how items need to be submitted to us.

B. If any resolutions necessitate special requirements that the Elections' Office needs to
fulfill, such requirements need to be listed in the resolution.

6. RETURN TO VOTER REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS

►Notice of Election
►Posting of Notice of Election form
►Certification of maps and   boundaries

The nomination period for the November 5, 2019 election is July 15, 2019 through August 9, 
2019.  A “Candidate Guide” for the election is being prepared and will be provided to all 
candidates at the time they obtain their nomination papers.   

If you have any questions regarding the election, or require additional information or clarification 
of the above, please call me at (530) 694-2281. 

Very truly yours, 

/s/  Teola L. Tremayne 

Teola L. Tremayne 
County Clerk / Elections Official 
Enclosures 



NOTICE OF DISTRICT ELECTION 

DISTRICT 

Notice is hereby given that a General District Election will be held November 5, 2019 in this 
district. The offices for which candidates may declare their candidacy are (list title of office and 
number of positions): 

Qualifications:  Each candidate must meet the following qualifications for office as specified in 
the principal act or code under which this district is organized: 

Candidate’s Statement – Number of words:  (check one) 
 200 word limit 
 400 word limit 

Candidate Statement - Costs 
 Candidate pre-pays at the district office or the County Clerk’s office 
 District pays for the candidate statement 

for the publication of the candidate’s statement, pursuant to Elections Code §13307.  

Reimbursement of Costs:  Bear Valley Water District agrees to reimburse the Alpine 
County Clerk for actual costs accrued, such costs to be calculated by the method set forth in the 
County’s current Election Cost Allocation Procedures. 

In case of a tie vote, how the method of selecting the winner will be determined, and who is 
responsible for determining the winner. 

Code Reference: 
Official declarations of candidacy for eligible candidates desiring to file for any of the elective 
offices may be obtained from the office of the County Clerk at 99 Water Street, Markleeville CA 
or the Bear Valley Water District at 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley CA, on and after July 15, 
2019, and must be filed not later than 5:00 p.m. on August 9, 2019.  However, if a declaration of 
candidacy for an incumbent is not filed by the latter date and hour, any person other than the 
incumbent shall have until 5:00 p.m. on August 14, 2019, to file a declaration of candidacy for 
such office. 

Appointment to each elective office will be made by the supervising authority as prescribed by 
Elections Code §10515 in the event there are no candidates or an insufficient number of 
candidates for such office and a petition for an election is not filed within the time prescribed by 
Elections Code §10515; that is, by 5:00 p.m. on August 14, 2019. 

Dated this  day of  , 2019. 

(District Seal)   
 District Secretary 



PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ELECTION 

Elections Code §12112 requires the publication of a “Notice of Election.”  The notice shall 
contain the date of the general district election, name the offices for which candidates may file, 
and state the qualifications required by the principal act for each office, as well as other 
pertinent information.  Since Alpine County has no newspaper of local circulation, the Attorney 
General has determined that the notice may be posted. 

Bear Valley Water District 

Recommends that the Registrar of Voters publish (check one only): 

[  ] A combined election notice with other districts 

or 

[  ] A separate/individual district notice. 

Dated:  

  District Secretary 



NOTICE OF ELECTIVE OFFICES TO BE FILLED 
AND TRANSMITTAL OF MAP AND BOUNDARIES 

(Residential and Landowner Voting Districts) 

(Elections Code Sections 10509, 10522, 10524) 

Bear Valley Water District 
(Name of District) 

To the County Clerk / Registrar of Voters: 
County of Alpine  
PO Box 158 
Markleeville, CA 96120 

(1) Notice is hereby given that at the next general district election, to be held in the above

district on         November 5, 2019         , the elective offices listed below are to be filled, and the

following measure(s) are to be voted upon:

OFFICE ELECTED NUMBER TO BE 
At Large By Division       ELECTED 

Director      x   2 

(2) A map showing the boundaries of the district and the boundaries of the divisions of the
district, if applicable, is attached hereto.

(3) That if any candidate elects to file a statement of qualifications, pursuant to Elections Code
§13307, the expense of publication is to be paid by the   _______________________________.

      (candidate or district) 

DATED: ____________________ ____________________________________ 
(Signature of Secretary) 

(District Seal) 

By the 125th day prior to the general district election the secretary shall deliver this notice bearing his/her 
signature and the district seal to the county elections official.  (Elections Code §10509) 

At least 125 days prior to the general district election the secretary shall deliver to the elections official of 
each affected county a map showing district boundaries and boundaries of divisions within the district, if 
applicable.  (Elections Code §10522) 





P.O. Box 158-99 Water Street, Markleeville, CA 96120  (530) 694-2281  /  Fax (530) 694-2491 
Internet Address: http://www.alpinecountyca.gov  /  email: ttremayne@alpinecountyca.gov 

Teola L. Tremayne, County Clerk 
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
Ex Officio Registrar of Voters 
 

COUNTY OF ALPINE 
Office of the County Clerk 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
ELECTION CALENDAR 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2019 

July 3, 2019 
(E-125) 

July 8, 2019 to 
August 7, 2019 
(E-120 to E-90) 

July 15, 2019 to 
August 9, 2019 
(E-113 to E-88) 

DELIVERY OF NOTICE OF ELECTIVE OFFICES TO BE FILLED 
AND BOUNDARY MAPS.   
The district secretary delivers to the county elections official notice that 
specifies the offices to be filled and indicates whether the district or the 
candidate is to pay for candidate’s statements.  The notice must bear the 
secretary’s signature and the district seal.  (EC 10509) 

District secretary delivers to the county elections official of each affected 
county a map showing the boundaries of the district and boundaries of 
divisions within the district, if applicable, and must indicate in which 
divisions a director is to be elected at large.  (EC 10522) 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ELECTION.  First and last day for  
one-time publication of the Notice of Election.  If there is no newspaper of  
general circulation in the district, the elections official of the principal 
county will publish in the nearest newspaper having general circulation. 
(EC 12112) 
(Please note that the Attorney General of California has given an opinion 
that Alpine County may post rather than publish since we have no 
newspaper of general circulation in the County.) 

DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY, FILING TIME.  NOMINATION 
PERIOD.  Dates candidates obtain and file their Declarations of  
Candidacy for special district boards.  (EC 10510) 

Declarations of Candidacy will be issued by the county elections 
official or the district secretary, and must be received in the election 
official’s office by 5:00 p.m. on August 9, 2019.  (EC 10510) 

Candidates who wish to have a Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications 
included in the voter’s pamphlet must file candidate’s statements at the 
time they file the declaration of candidacy.  (EC 13307) 

No candidate shall withdraw his or her declaration of candidacy after 5:00 
p.m. on the 88th day prior to the general district election.  (EC 10510)



District Election Calendar 
November 5, 2019 
Page 2 

August 14, 2019 EXTENSION OF NOMINATION PERIOD.  If an incumbent officer of a  
(E-83) special district does not file a declaration of candidacy by 5:00 p.m. on 

August 11th, any person, other than the incumbent, may file a declaration 
of candidacy by 5:00 p.m. on August 14, 2019.  This provision does not 
apply if there is no incumbent eligible to be elected.  (EC 10516) 

August 14, 2019 INSUFFICIENT CANDIDATES.  APPOINTMENT OF CANDIDATES.   
(E-83) If by 5:00 p.m. on this day: (1) only one person has filed a declaration of 

candidacy for any elective office to be filled, (2) no one has filed a 
declaration of candidacy, (3) or an insufficient number of persons has 
filed to fill the offices; and if a petition signed by 10% of voters has not 
been submitted requesting that the district election be held, the election 
official shall certify this fact to the board of supervisors, and a person who 
has filed a declaration of candidacy shall be appointed at a regular or 
special meeting held prior to the first Monday before the first Friday in 
December.  If no one filed, another qualified person shall be appointed 
and shall take office and serve as if elected.  (EC 10515) 

August 15, 2019 RANDOMIZED ALPHABET DRAWING.  The Registrar of Voters  
(E-82) conducts the randomized alphabet drawing at 11:00 a.m. to determine the 

order in which candidates’ names appear on the ballot.  (EC 13112(b)(C)) 

October 21, 2019 CLOSE OF VOTER REGISTRATION.  Last day to register or transfer 
(E-15)  registration for this election.  (EC 2107) 

October 7, 2019 to MAILING BALLOTS AND SAMPLE BALLOT PAMPHLETS.  The 
October 26, 2019 combined sample ballot pamphlet and mail ballots shall be mailed 
(E-29 to E-10) between these dates.  (EC 4002, 4101, 13300) 

November 5, 2019 ELECTION DAY.  Ballots must be received by 8:00 p.m. by the elections 
official. 

November 29, 2019 DECLARATION OF ELECTED CANDIDATES.  Deadline for the county 
elections official to declare the elected candidates.  (EC 10551) 

December 6, 2019 ASSUMING OFFICE.  Officers declared elected or appointed take office 
this date at noon after having taken any oath or posted any bond required 
by the principal act.  (EC 10505, 10554) 



UPDATED 6/4/2019 

COUNTY OF ALPINE 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 ROSTER 
2019 

Legal Name of Public Agency: Bear Valley Water District 
PO Box 5027 
Bear Valley, CA 95223 
209-753-2112

General Manager:  Jeffrey Gouveia 
Office Manager: Judy Silber 
Board President:   James Bissell 
Board Vice President Stefaniya Becking 
Treasurer  John Boyle  
Secretary:  Ken Brown  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: TERM OF OFFICE: 

Ken Brown  12-04-2015 to 12-06-2019
4656 Winding River Cir Appointed 6-23-2014
Stockton CA 95219 
209-969-3406

John Boyle  12-01-2017 to 12-03-2021
541 Fanita Way Appointed 12-3-2013
Menlo Park CA 94025 
650-323-5438

Stefaniya Becking  12-01-2017 to 12-02-2021
PO Box 400  Appointed 11-5-2013
Los Gatos, CA 95031 
650-804-6155

Gunnar Thordarson  12-04-2015 to 12-06-2019
P.O. Box 7739 Elected 11-8-2011
Incline Village, NV 89450 
209-753-2410

James D. Bissell  12-01-2017 to 12-03-2021
17480 Madison Ave. Elected 11-3-2009
Castro Valley, CA 94546 Appointed 11-5-2013
510-886-1598



Bear Valley Water District

Performance vs. Budget

June 2018 vs. June 2019

 

Prior Year FY 17-18 FY 17-18 % Current Year FY 18-19 FY 18-19% Variance 
July 1 - June 30 Budget Budget July 1 - June 30 Budget Budget Explanation

REVENUES
Residential 582,196 589,000 99% 589,935 586,000 101%
Commercial 204,119 190,000 107% 198,719 176,000 113%

Subtotal Operating Revenue 786,315 779,000 101% 788,654 762,000 103% Revenue Target - 100%

EXPENSES
Salaries & Benefits 309,857 325,776 95% 324,589 347,108 94%
Director Expenses 2,363 3,000 79% 1,678 3,000 56%
Operator Training & Certs 490 1,500 33% 756 1,500 50%
Gas, Diesel, Oil & Filters 3,282 3,000 109% 2,766 3,000 92% On Target
Insurance 26,613 22,500 118% 22,574 23,000 98%
Memberships & Conferences 5,968 5,500 109% 7,078 8,000 88% On Target
Office Expenses & Supplies 13,971 10,000 140% 9,337 10,000 93%
Field Expenses & Supplies 23,682 18,000 132% 20,074 15,000 134% Bio-Aug, Disinfec, Dechlor
Grooming, Snow Removal & Vehicle Storage 2,682 3,500 77% 3,003 3,500 86%
Engineering & Consulting 6,759 5,000 135% 5,314 5,000 106% Permit Mod / Diff Upgrade Proj
Legal & Accounting 14,545 10,000 145% 16,224 10,000 162% Audit, Pub Cont, Procur Policy
Equipment Rental 558 600 93% 429 600 72%
Repairs & Maintenance 80,116 78,214 102% 48,178 60,000 80%
Laboratory Fees 21,477 25,000 86% 14,702 18,000 82%
Regulatory Reporting & Comp. Projects 6,271 6,500 96% 6,305 6,500 97%
Taxes, Fees, Licenses & Assessments 30,173 30,000 101% 34,325 33,000 104% Inc Permit & Dam Fees
Utilities 50,328 55,000 92% 59,778 55,000 109% Inc Elec for Treatment

Subtotal Operating Expenses 599,133 603,090 99% 577,111 602,208 96% Expense Target - 100%

Net Operational Income 187,182 175,910 106% 211,544 159,792 132%

OTHER REVENUE
Interest Income - LAIF 4,318 2,000 216% 7,448 4,000 186%
Late Fee, Penalties and Interest 9,158 10,000 92% 9,054 0 UBD
Expense Reimburements - USFS Campground 3,863 3,863 100% 2,870 2,870 100%
Expense Reimbursements - Concessionnairre 5,290 5,290 100% 4,608 4,608 100%
Misc Other Income 190 0 UBD 408 0 UBD

Subtotal Other Revenue 22,818 21,153 108% 24,389 11,478 212%

OTHER EXPENSES
Loan Interest 18,703 18,809 99% 17,199 17,203 100%
Depreciation 101,629 114,223 89% 111,803 103,451 108%
Mics Expense -576 UBD 10 0 UBD

Subtotal Other Expenses 119,756 133,032 90% 129,012 120,654 107%

Net Other Income (96,938) (115,156) 84% (104,623) (109,176) 96%

NET INCOME 90,244 60,754 149% 106,921 50,616 211%

NON CASH EXPENDITURES (included in net income)
Depreciation 101,629 114,223 89% 111,803 103,451 108%

Subtotal Non-Cash Expenses 101,629 114,223 89% 111,803 103,451 108%

CASH EXPENDITURES ( Not Included in net income)
Capital Improvements / Replacements (124,220) (117,500) 106% (115,728) (92,500) 125% BG Lift Station Upgrade
Loan Payments - Principal (37,635) (37,629) 100% (39,138) (39,134) 100%

Subtotal Addl Cash Expenses (161,855) (155,129) 104% (154,866) (131,634) 118%

NET CASH FLOW 30,019 19,848 151% 63,857 22,433 -33%



 4:12 PM
 07/19/19
 Accrual Basis

 BVWD

 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
 As of June 30, 2019

Jun 30, 19 Jun 30, 18 $ Change % Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

11015 ꞏ F&M Bank 432,317.46 364,715.05 67,602.41 18.54%

11018 ꞏ LAIF 311,394.63 303,989.99 7,404.64 2.44%

11020 ꞏ Petty Cash 50.00 50.00

11025 ꞏ Capital Facilities Fund 21,656.00 21,656.00

Total Checking/Savings 765,418.09 690,411.04 75,007.05 10.86%

Accounts Receivable

11050 ꞏ Accounts Receivable -24,393.71 -15,372.91 -9,020.80 -58.68%

Total Accounts Receivable -24,393.71 -15,372.91 -9,020.80 -58.68%

Other Current Assets

11055 ꞏ Accounts Receivable-Tax Roll 9,608.41 18,317.28 -8,708.87 -47.55%

11140 ꞏ Prepaid Insurance 12,603.00 11,949.75 653.25 5.47%

11170 ꞏ Prepaid Dam Fees 11,724.00 9,771.00 1,953.00 19.99%

Total Other Current Assets 33,935.41 40,038.03 -6,102.62 -15.24%

Total Current Assets 774,959.79 715,076.16 59,883.63 8.37%

Fixed Assets

12010 ꞏ Land 25,805.16 25,805.16

12020 ꞏ SbSrfLine 1,196,893.29 1,196,893.29

12040 ꞏ Col Facilities 425,176.65 425,176.65

12041 ꞏ LA Facilities 166,428.79 166,428.79

12050 ꞏ TRT Facilities 1,127,133.14 1,127,133.14

12060 ꞏ DSP Facilities 1,244,788.01 1,244,788.01

12080 ꞏ P & A (Plant & Admin)Facilities 482,118.91 482,118.91

12100 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation -2,673,692.00 -2,561,889.00 -111,803.00 -4.36%

14030 ꞏ Work in Progress

16540 ꞏ Bee Gulch Lift Station Upgrade 60,407.85 60,407.85 100.0%

16550 ꞏ Inundation Mapping Project 15,691.20 15,691.20 100.0%

16560 ꞏ Treatment Pond Improvement Proj 47,363.91 47,363.91 100.0%

Total 14030 ꞏ Work in Progress 123,462.96 123,462.96 100.0%

Total Fixed Assets 2,118,114.91 2,106,454.95 11,659.96 0.55%

TOTAL ASSETS 2,893,074.70 2,821,531.11 71,543.59 2.54%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

21021 ꞏ Accounts Payable 9,306.27 4,188.26 5,118.01 122.2%

Total Accounts Payable 9,306.27 4,188.26 5,118.01 122.2%

Other Current Liabilities

21090 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities 7,782.33 8,957.94 -1,175.61 -13.12%

2110 ꞏ Direct Deposit Liabilities -8.18 -8.18

22021 ꞏ Accrued Vacation 7,489.19 7,671.06 -181.87 -2.37%

Total Other Current Liabilities 15,263.34 16,620.82 -1,357.48 -8.17%

Total Current Liabilities 24,569.61 20,809.08 3,760.53 18.07%

 Page 1 of 2



 4:12 PM
 07/19/19
 Accrual Basis

 BVWD

 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
 As of June 30, 2019

Jun 30, 19 Jun 30, 18 $ Change % Change

Long Term Liabilities

26025 ꞏ F&M Bank Loan 416,443.40 455,581.79 -39,138.39 -8.59%

Total Long Term Liabilities 416,443.40 455,581.79 -39,138.39 -8.59%

Total Liabilities 441,013.01 476,390.87 -35,377.86 -7.43%

Equity

29000 ꞏ Retained Earnings 1,748,484.24 1,658,240.13 90,244.11 5.44%

29100 ꞏ O & M Emergency Reserve Fund 150,000.00 150,000.00

29200 ꞏ CIP Reserve Fund 425,000.00 425,000.00

29300 ꞏ Capacity Fee Reserve Fund 21,656.00 21,656.00

Net Income 106,921.45 90,244.11 16,677.34 18.48%

Total Equity 2,452,061.69 2,345,140.24 106,921.45 4.56%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,893,074.70 2,821,531.11 71,543.59 2.54%

 Page 2 of 2



 1:21 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of April 30, 2019

Prepaids April 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 90.12 90.12 Telephone for Lake Alpine Boat Ramp & Eq. Hse

A.T.&T. 148.45 148.45 Telephone for Main Office

A.T.&T. 45 45 U-Verse for Main Office

Card Services 1121.37 1121.37 Office, Field Supplies. Board Meeting.

E.D.D. 322.33 322.33 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 84.99 84.99 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 81.68 81.68 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 353.02 353.02 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank 4694.8 4694.8 Principal and Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 2168.04 2168.04 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 7.71 7.71 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2121.6 2121.6 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water Company 219.19 219.19 Water for Main Office

P.G.&E. 2638.04 2638.04 Electricity for April 

SDRMA 1799.28 1799.28 Employee Health Insurance

SDRMA 656.32 656.32 Employee Dental, Vision, LTD, Life Insurance

Vantagepoint Transfer 840.78 840.78 Retirement for Empolyees

Vantagepoint Transfer 237.38 237.38 Retirement for Empolyees

Vantagepoint Transfer 238.26 238.26 Retirement for Empolyees

Vantagepoint Transfer 841.66 841.66 Retirement for Empolyees

TOTAL 18710.02 18710.02

Account Payable April 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 799.00 799.00 Laboratory Analysis

Arnold Auto Supply Inc. 52.45 52.45 Auto Parts

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 J/E Adjustment

Borges & Mahoney Co. 1,350.46 1,350.46 Repair & Maintenance

EBBETTS PASS GAS CO. Inc. 644.33 1,230.77 1,875.10 Propane

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 99.73 99.73 Field Supplies

Guy West 63.80 63.80 Employee Reimbursement

Hach 1,401.45 1,401.45 Field Supplies

Description

Description

 Page 1 of 2



 1:21 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of April 30, 2019

Account Payable April 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL Description

ICMA Retirement Corporation 51.01 51.01 Administrative Fees for the 1st Quarter 2019

Ken Grady Company, Inc. 149.82 149.82 Field Supplies

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Bank Adjustment

Mead & Hunt 3,922.80 3,922.80 Dam Inundation Mapping

Neumiller and Beardslee 315.00 315.00 Legal Fees

Weber Ghio and Associates, Inc 2,034.28 2,034.28 Engineering Fees

TOTAL 644.33 11,470.57 -213.28 11,901.62

 Page 2 of 2



 1:22 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of May 31, 2019

Prepaids May 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 45.00 45.00 U-Verse Main Office

A.T.&T. 143.40 143.40 Telephone Main Office

A.T.&T. 90.13 90.13 Telephone Lake Alpine Boat Ramp & Eq. Hse.

E.D.D. 86.31 86.31 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 246.25 246.25 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 97.56 97.56 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 339.38 339.38 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 386.82 386.82 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 115.66 115.66 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank of Lodi 4,694.80 4,694.80 Principal and Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 2,247.16 2,247.16 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,477.32 2,477.32 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,818.18 2,818.18 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water Company 0.00 0.00 No Charge in May

P.G.&E. 3,514.67 3,514.67 Electrictity for May

P.G.&E. 3,660.42 3,660.42 Electrictity for June

SDRMA 1,799.28 1,799.28 Employee Health Benefits

SDRMA 656.32 656.32 Employee Dental, Vision, LTD, & Life Insurance

Vantage Point Transfer 252.09 252.09 Employee Retirement

Vantage Point Transfer 900.96 900.96 Employee Retirement

Vantage Point Transfer 282.91 282.91 Employee Retirement

Vantage Point Transfer 1,036.88 1,036.88 Employee Retirement

Vantage Point Transfer 310.68 310.68 Employee Retirement

Vantage Point Transfer 1,079.04 1,079.04 Employee Retirement

The Zenith 1,200.00 1,200.00 Workers Compensation Insurance

TOTAL 28,481.22 28,481.22

Accounts Payable May 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 1,799.00 1,799.00 Laboratory Analysis

Alpine County Public Works 354.64 354.64 Fuel

Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. 4,384.68 4,384.68 Scada Loaner

Description

Description

 Page 1 of 2



 1:22 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of May 31, 2019

Accounts Payable May 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL Description

Balance Hydrologics, Inc 2,326.78 2,326.78 Creek Water Flow Measurement

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 Voided Check

Card Services 2,618.81 2,618.81 Office, Field Supplies, Board Meeting

Dept. of Water Resources -11,724.00 -11,724.00 Prepaid Dam Fees

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 57.31 57.31 Field Supplies

Enkode 300.00 300.00 Database Hosting 1 Year

Gravison Inc. - Pioneer Electric 1,044.64 1,044.64 Repair and Maintenance - Chickaree Station

Gunnar Thordarson 100.00 100.00 Director's Fees Regular Meeting May 20th

Guy West 7.78 7.78 Employee Reimbursement

Hach 516.53 516.53 Laboratory Supplies

Jeff Gouveia 125.28 125.28 Employee Reimbursement

Jim Bissell 200.00 200.00 Director's Fees Regular Meeting May 20th

John Boyle 100.00 100.00 Director's Fees Regular Meeting May 20th

Ken Brown 100.00 100.00 Director's Fees Regular Meeting May 20th

Ken Grady Company, Inc. 111.73 111.73 Repair and Maintenance 

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Bank Adj.

Neumiller and Beardslee 1,192.50 1,192.50 Legal Fees 

Steve Mikesell 210.00 210.00 Employee Reimbursement

Thatcher Company of California 783.16 783.16 Sodium Bisulfite 

The Zenith Included with April

Weber Ghio and Associates, Inc 599.13 599.13 Engineering Fees for May

TOTAL 2,009.00 3,198.97 -213.28 4,994.69

 Page 2 of 2



 1:23 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of June 30, 2019

Prepaids June 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 45.00 45.00 U-Verse Main Office

A.T.&T. 90.13 90.13 Telephone Lake Alpine Boat & Eq. Hse

A.T.&T. 143.40 143.40 Telephone Main Office

Card Services 2,618.81 2,618.81 Office, Field Supplies

E.D.D. 119.36 119.36 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 573.71 573.71 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 8.70 8.70 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 53.94 53.94 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 122.99 122.99 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 588.58 588.58 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank of Lodi 4,694.80 4,694.80 Principal and Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 3,119.90 3,119.90 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 133.10 133.10 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 3,167.30 3,167.30 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water Company 508.56 508.56 Water for May & June Main Office

P.G.&E. 0.00 Electricity (See May) 

SDRMA 1,799.28 1,799.28 Employee Health Benefits

SDRMA 656.32 656.32 Employee Dental, Vision, LTD, Life Ins.

Vantagepoint Transfer 351.26 351.26 Employee Retirement

Vantagepoint Transfer 1,180.16 1,180.16 Employee Retirement

Vantagepoint Transfer 349.10 349.10 Employee Retirement

Vantagepoint Transfer 1,197.37 1,197.37  Employee Retirement

The Zenith 799.00 799.00 Workers Compensation Insurance

TOTAL 22,320.77 22,320.77

Accounts Payables June 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 1,634.00 1,634.00 Laboratory Analysis

Alpine County Public Works 367.88 367.88 Fuel

Arnold Auto Supply Inc. 19.27 19.27 Auto Parts

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 Voided Check

EBBETTS PASS GAS CO. Inc. 707.27 707.27 Propane

Description

Description

 Page 1 of 2



 1:23 PM
 07/19/19

 BVWD

 A/P Aging Summary
 As of June 30, 2019

Accounts Payables June 2019 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL Description

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 71.70 71.70 Field Supplies

Jeff Gouveia 93.96 93.96 Employee Reimburement

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Bank Adj.

Neumiller and Beardslee 1,055.00 1,055.00 Legal Fees

P.G.&E. 3,781.86 3,781.86 Electricity

Pacific EcoRisk 644.20 644.20 Field Supplies

Thatcher Company of California 694.41 694.41 Chlorine

The Zenith No Charge

Weber Ghio and Associates, Inc 450.00 450.00 Engineering Fees

TOTAL 1,634.00 7,885.55 -213.28 9,306.27

 Page 2 of 2




	BVWD July 22 2019 Agenda - Final
	Tax Roll Delinquent Accounts FY19-20 Alpine County (2)
	Agenda Item #2 - Minutes_05_20_2019
	Minutes_05_20_2019
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM MAY 2019

	Agenda Item #3 - Revised Bylaws
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM - Bylaws Review July 2019
	Draft Revised Bylaws July 2019
	BVWD 2010 Bylaws
	img056.pdf
	Recorded Bylaws

	06-12-1985 Letter and Resolution re Bear Valley Water District Formation

	Agenda Item #4 - WWTP Improvement Project
	Agenda Item #4 - WWTP Improvement Project P1
	Agenda Item #4 - WWTP Improvement Project P2

	Agenda Item #5 - FY 19-20 Budget Proposal
	GM AGENDA ITEM - FY 2019-20 Final Budget - July 2019
	BVWD FY 19 - 20 + 3 YR BUDGET PROJ
	SDRMA July Benefits Letter
	Addl Budget Items
	BVWD - Prop 218 Notice FINAL
	BVWD Reserve Policy - 2017 - APPROVED

	Agenda Item #6 - Manager's Report
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM JULY 2019
	Manager's Report REV
	LAFCO Representation White Paper 
	BVWD Call for Election 2019
	LETTER - BVWD Calling Election 2019
	PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ELECTION

	Notice of Offices to be Filled Districts BVWD 2019
	NOTICE OF ELECTIVE OFFICES TO BE FILLED
	AND TRANSMITTAL OF MAP AND BOUNDARIES

	Bear Valley Water District Map
	CALENDAR Special Districts 2019
	SPECIAL DISTRICTS
	ELECTION CALENDAR
	District Election Calendar

	ROSTER BV Water 2019


	Agenda Item #7 - Financials
	Profit  Loss Budget Previous Year Comparison June 2019 vs  June 2018
	Balance Sheet June 2019 Previous Year Comparison June 2018
	Accounts Payable April 2019
	Accounts Payable May 2019
	Accounts Payable June 2019
	Accounts Receivable June 30, 2019 Previous Year Comparison June 30, 2018


